Gea Johnson | Structural Option Faculty Advisor: Dr. Hanagan November 16, 2011

1000 CONNECTICUT AVENUE

Washington DC



Technical Report 3: Lateral System and Confirmation Design

Table of Contents

Executive Summary
Introduction
Structural Overview
Foundation7
Framing and Floor System9
Lateral System12
Roof System
Design Codes13
Structural Materials14
Gravity Loads15
Dead and Live Loads15
Snow Load16
Flat Slab Interior Panel Gravity Check17
Column # 50 Gravity Spot Check17
Lateral Loads
Wind Loads19
Seismic Loads
Computer Model
Relative Stiffness and Rigidity
Load Combinations
Building Torsion
Lateral Load Distribution
Direct Shear41
Torsional Shear42
Story Drift and Lateral Displacement
Overturning and Stability Analysis
Frame Checks
Conclusion
Appendix A: Gravity Load Calculations
Appendix B: Wind Load Calculations63

Appendix C: Seismic Load Calculations	.78
Appendix D: Controlling Wind Load Case and Controlling Load Combination	.84
Controlling Wind Case	.84
Controlling Load Combination	.86
Appendix E: Direction of Direct and Torsional Shears Acting on Lateral Resisting Moment Frames	.87
Appendix F: Frame Spot Checks	.88
Appendix G: Typical Floor Plans	.93

Executive Summary

1000 Connecticut Avenue is a 12 story, 565, 000 GSF commercial office building located at the corner of K Street and Connecticut Avenue in Washington D.C. The building is used primarily for office space, but also contains retail space on the first level, commercial office space on levels 3-12, a roof-top terrace with a green roof, and four levels of underground parking.

The purpose of this technical report is to further understand the existing structural system by determining which combination of lateral loads controlled the lateral system design; checking the story displacement and story drifts due to the controlling lateral loads and comparing the drift values to allowable code limits; analyzing the overturning moments due to the lateral loads and the resisting moments due to the total building weight; and, spot checking critical members for strength adequacy.

The wind loads were determined by using Analytical Procedure (method 2) outlined in ASCE 7-10 and the seismic loads were determined by using the Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure outlined in ASCE 7-10. The wind loads were calculated for both the North-South and East-West directions and it was found that the lateral forces due to the wind load were greatest in the N-S direction, resulting in a base shear of 1401 kips. One analysis was completed for determining the seismic story forces since the lateral force resisting system consists of a reinforced concrete moment frame in both the N-S and E-W directions. The seismic base shear was found to be 1001 kips, which was 55 % greater than the design base shear of 645 kips. This shows that the dead load assumptions and analysis simplifications were conservative.

Further, an ETABS computer model of the lateral system was created to determine which combination of lateral loads controlled the lateral system's design; to determine each frame's stiffness; and, to check the serviceability by determining the lateral displacements/story drifts due to the un-factored controlling lateral forces in both the N-S and E-W directions. It was found that the N-S wind load case 1 controlled the lateral load in the N-S direction and the seismic was the controlling lateral load in the E-W direction. Using the controlling lateral loads to determine the building drift, it was found that both the lateral displacements and story drifts were within the allowable code limits.

In addition, it was found that the columns do not transfer moment to the foundation since the spread footings will behave like pinned connections due to the their low rigidity; therefore the footings will not be able to carry the moment due to the lateral loads. It was determined that the slab-to-column moment frame systems below grade are adequate to carry the moments due to the lateral loads.

Lastly, a member spot check was performed on column 50, an interior column. The column was checked for both axial load and bending. ETABS was used to determine the in-plane bending moment acting on the column due to the factored wind load in the N-S direction. An interaction diagram was created to compare P_u and M_u to ϕP_n and ϕM_n and the column was found to be adequate to carry the combined axial and bending load.

The appendices in this report include hand calculations for wind, seismic, snow and gravity loads; frame spot checks; and, typical floor plans and a building section.

Introduction

1000 Connecticut Avenue, NW Office Building is a new 12 story office building located at the northwest intersection of K Street and Connecticut Avenue in Washington DC, as can be seen in Figure 1. The 1000 Connecticut Avenue Office building is designed to achieve LEED Gold certification upon completion. Despite being used primarily for office space, the building is comprised of mix occupancies, which include: office space, a gymnasium, retail, and parking garages. The structure has 4 levels of underground parking. The building's total square footage is 555,000 SF with 370,000 SF above grade and 185,000 SF below grade.



Figure 1 Building Site

To create a new Washington landmark, the building is designed to complement surrounding institutions by blending both traditional and modern materials. The facade consists of a glass, stainless steel and stone panel curtain wall system. Exterior and interior aluminum and glass storefront windows and doors are on the ground level. The lobby and retail space are located on the 1st level, which has a 12'-6 1/2" floor-to-floor story height. A canopy facing K Street brings attention to the main lobby entrance, as can be seen in Figure 2.



Figure 2 Main Lobby Entrance facing K Street (left) and perspective of curtain wall system (right)

Technica Report 3

Beyond the main entrance is a two story intricate lobby space with carrera marble and Chelmsford granite flooring, aluminum spline panels integrated with glass fiber reinforced gypsum (GFRG) ceiling tiles and European white oak wood screens, as can be seen in Figure 3.



Figure 3 Perspective of lobby

The retail space is broken down into several retail stores facing K Street and Connecticut Avenue. These retail stores are housed behind storefront glass to enable display of merchandise to potential customers. The 2nd-12th levels have 10'-7 ½" floor-to-floor story heights. Housed on the typical levels (3rd-12th) is the office space. A combination of tall story heights and a continuous floor to ceiling glass façade enables natural daylight to enter the building space as well as provides scenery to the Washington monuments, Farragut Park , and the White House, as can be seen in Figure 4.



Figure 4 Perspective of typical office with floor-to-ceiling windows that supply views to the city

In addition, located on the penthouse level is a roof-top terrace with a green roof and a mechanical penthouse, as can be seen in Figure 5.



Figure 5 Perspective of green roof on roof-top terrace and mechanical penthouse

Housed on the basement levels (B1-B4) are underground parking and a fitness center. A total of 253 parking spaces are provided; level B1 has 19 parking spaces; level B2 has 74 parking spaces; level B3 has 78 parking spaces; level B4 has 82 parking spaces. In addition, the fitness center is located on level B1.

Structural Overview

1000 Connecticut Avenue Office Building's structural system is comprised of a reinforced concrete flat slab floor system with drop panels and a bay spacing of approximately 30 feet by 30 feet. The slab and columns combined perform as a reinforced concrete moment frame. The substructure and superstructure floor systems are both comprised of an 8" thick two-way system with #5 reinforcing bars spaced 12" on center in both the column and middle strips and 8" thick drop panels. The below grade parking garage ramp is comprised of a 14" thick slab with #5 reinforcing bars provided both top and bottom with a spacing of 12" on center.

Foundation

ECS Mid-Atlantic, LLC performed a geotechnical analysis of the building's site soil conditions as well as provided recommendations for the foundation. A total of five borings were observed in the geotechnical analysis. It was determined that a majority of the site's existing fill consists of a mixture of silt, sand, gravel, and wood. The natural soils consisted of sandy silt, sand with silt, clayey gravel, silty gravel, and silty sand. The soil varies from loose to extremely dense in relative density. Based on the samples recovered from the rock coring operations, the rock is classified as completely to moderately weathered, thinly bedded, and hard to very hard gneiss.

At the time of the study, the groundwater was recorded at a boring depth of 7.5 feet below the existing ground surface. The shallow water table is located at an elevation of 35 to 38 feet in the vicinity of the site.

1000 Connecticut Avenue, NW Office Building is supported by a shallow foundation consisting of column footings and strap beams, as can be seen in Figure 6. The typical column footing sizes are $4'-0'' \times 4'-0'', 5'-0'' \times 5'-0'', \text{ and } 4'-0'' \times 8'-0''.$



Figure 6 Details of typical strap beam and column footing

The footings bear on 50 KSF competent rock. The Strap beams (cantilever footings) are used to prevent the exterior footings from overturning by connecting the strap beam to both the exterior footing and to an adjacent interior footing. A simplified foundation plan can be seen in Figure 7.

The slab on grade is 5" thick, 5000 psi concrete with 6x6-W2.9xW2.9 wire welded fabric on a minimum 15 mil Polyethylene sheet over 6" washed crushed stone. The foundation walls consists of concrete masonry units vertically reinforced with #5 bars at 16" on center and horizontally reinforced with #4 bars at 12" on center and are subjected to a lateral load (earth pressure) of 45 PSF per foot of wall depth.



Figure 7 Foundation plan

Framing and Floor System





The framing system is composed of reinforced concrete columns with an average column-to-column spacing of 30'x30', as can be seen in Figure 8. The columns have a specified concrete strength of f'c=8000 psi for columns on levels B4 to level 3, f'c=6000 psi for columns on levels 4-7, and f'c=5000 psi for columns on levels 8-mechanical penthouse. The columns are framed at the concrete floor, as can be seen in Figure 9, and the columns vary in size. The most common column sizes are 24"x24", 16"x48", and 24"x30". The column capitals are 6" thick, measured from the bottom of the drop panel, extending 6" all around the face of the column, as can be seen in Figure 10.





NOTE: d = COLUMN CAPITAL SIZE; SEE PLAN.

TYPICAL COLUMN CAPITAL DETAIL

Figure 9 Typical Detail of column framed at the floor

Figure 10 Typical column capital detail

The typical floor system is comprised of an 8" thick two-way flat slab with drop panels reinforced with #5 bottom bars spaced 12" on center in both the column and middle strips, as can be seen in Figure 11.



Figure 11 Typical two-way slab reinforcing detail

The individual drop panels are 8" thick, extending a distance d/6 from the centerline of the column, as can be seen in Figure 12.



REINFORCING DETAILS

Figure 12 Typical Continuous drop panel

A 36" wide by 3 ½" deep continuous drop panel is located around the perimeter on all floor levels. Levels 3-12 are supported by four post-tension beams above the lobby area. Due to the two story lobby, there's a large column-to-column spacing. As a result, post tension beams are used to support the slab on levels 3-12 located above the lobby. In addition, four post-tension beams support the slab on levels 3-12 that are located above the two-story parking deck, which also has a large column-to-column spacing, as can be seen in Figure 13.





noox.

Lateral System

The lateral system is comprised of a reinforced concrete moment frame. The columns and slab are poured monolithically, thus creating a rigid connection between the elements. The curtain wall is attached to the concrete slab, which puts the slab in bending. The curtain wall transfers the lateral load to the slab. The slab then transfers the lateral load to the columns and in turn the columns transfer the load to the foundation. Transfer girders on the lower level are used to transfer the loads from the columns that do not align with the basement columns in order to transfer the load to the foundation. A depiction of how the lateral load is transferred through the system can be seen in Figure 14.

> Curtain wall collects the lateral load and directly transfers the load to the concrete slab

The slab transfers the lateral load to the columns



November 16, 2011

Roof System

The main roof framing system is supported by an 8"thick concrete slab with #5 bars spaced 12" on center at the bottom in the east-west direction. The slab also has 8" thick drop panels. The penthouse framing system is separated into two roofs: Elevator Machine Room roof and the high roof. The elevator machine room roof framing system is supported by 14" and 8" thick slab with #7 bars with 6" spacing on center top and bottom in the east-west direction.

Design Codes

According to sheet S601, the original building was designed to comply with the following:

- 2000 International Building Code (IBC 2000)
- Building Code Requirements for Structural Concrete (ACI 318)
- Specifications for Structural Concrete (ACI 301)
- Manual of Standard Practice for Detailing Reinforced Concrete Structures (ACI 315)
- Specification for the Design, Fabrication and Erection of Structural Steel for Buildings (AISC manual), Allowable Strength Design (ASD) method

The codes that were used to complete the analyses within this technical report are the following:

- ACI 318-08
- Minimum Design Loads for Building and Other Structures (ASCE 7-10)
- AISC Steel Construction Manual, 14th Edition, Load and Resistance Factor Design (LRFD) method
- Vulcraft Steel Roof and Floor Deck Manual, 2008
- Precast/Prestressed Concrete Institute (PCI) Handbook Manual, 7th Edition

Structural Materials

Table 1 below shows the several types of materials that were used for this project according to the general notes page of the structural drawings on sheet S601.

Concrete (Cast-in-Place)							
Usage	Weight	Strength (psi)					
Spread Footings	Normal	4000					
Strap Beams	Normal	4000					
Foundation Walls	Normal	4000					
Formed Slabs and Beams	Normal	5000					
Columns	Normal	Varies (based on column					
		schedule)					
Concrete Toppings	Normal	5000					
Slabs on Grade	Normal	5000					
Pea-gravel concrete (or grout)	Normal	2500 (for filling CMU units)					
All other concrete	Normal	3000					
	Reinforcing Steel						
Туре	Standard	Grade					
Deformed Reinforcing Bars	ASTM A615	60					
	ASTM A775	N/A					
Welded Wire Fabric	ASTM A185	N/A					
Reinforcing Bar Mats	ASTM A184	N/A					
	Post-Tensioning (Unbonded)						
Туре	Standard	Strength (ksi)					
Prestressed Steel (seven wire low-	ASTM A416	270					
relaxation or stressed relieved							
strand)							
	Miscellaneous Steel						
Туре	Standard	Grade					
Structural Steel	ASTM A36	N/A					
Bolts	ASTM A325	N/A					
Welds	AWS	N/A					

Table 1 Design materials

Gravity Loads

For this technical report, live loads and snow loads were compared to the loads listed on the structural drawings. In addition, dead loads were calculated and assumed in order to spot check gravity members and typical columns. The system evaluations were then compared to the original design. The hand calculations for the gravity member checks can be found in Appendix A.

Dead and Live Loads

Table 2 below is a list of the live loads in which the project was designed for compared to the minimum design live loads outlined in ASCE 7-10.

Floor Live Loads							
Occupancy	Design Load (psf)	ASCE 7-10					
Parking Levels	50	40					
Retail	100	100					
Vestibules &	100	100					
Lobbies							
Office Floors	100=(80 psf+ 20 psf	70= (50 psf + 20 psf					
	partitions)	partitions)					
Corridors	100	100 on ground level					
		80 above 1 st level					
Stairs	100	100					
Balconies &	100	100					
Terraces							
Mechanical Room	150	-					
Pump Room,	150	-					
Generator Room							
Light Storage	125	125					
Loading Dock,	350	250					
Truck Bays							
Slab On Grade	100	-					
Green Roof Areas	30	-					
Terrace	100	100					

Table 2 Summary of design live loads compared to minimum design live loads on ASCE 7-10Note: - Means the load for the specified occupancy was not provided

Based on the above design live loads, certain spaces were designed for higher loads to create a more conservative design and to allow for design flexibility. For this technical report, the design live loads were used for the gravity member analyses.

Snow Load

The snow load was determined in conformance to chapter 7 in ASCE 7-10. A summary of the snow drift parameters are shown in table 3.

Flat Roof Snow load Calculations						
Variable	Value					
Ground Snow, p _g (psf)	25					
Temperature, Factor C _t	1.0					
Exposure Factor, C _e	0.9					
Importance Factor, I _s	1.0					
Flat Roof Snow Load, p _f	15.75					

Table 3 Summary of roof snow calculations

According to structural drawing sheet S601, the flat roof snow load was 22.5 psf whereas 15.75 psf was calculated in this technical report. According to ASCE 7-10, $p_f=0.7C_eC_tI_sP_g$, whereas according to IBC 2000, $p_f=C_eC_tI_sP_g$. The difference in the calculated flat roof snow load and the design flat roof snow load is due to a 0.7 reduction factor. The 15.75 psf value was used to determine the snow load and snow drifts. These subsequent calculations can be found in Appendix A.

Table 4 below is a list of the dead loads that were used for the gravity spot checks. The superimposed dead loads for the floor levels and roofs were assumed.

Dead Loads						
Normal Weight Concrete	150 pcf					
Curtain Wall	250 plf					
Precast Panels	450 plf					
Floor Superimposed Dead Load (ceiling, lights,	10 psf					
MEP, miscellaneous)						
Main Roof Superimposed Dead Load (ceiling,	10 psf					
lights, MEP, miscellaneous)						
Penthouse Roof Superimposed Dead Loads	5 psf					
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·						

 Table 4 Summary of dead loads

Flat Slab Interior Panel Gravity Check

The interior flat slab panel outlined in figure 15 was checked for slab thickness and column strip reinforcement. I chose to check this panel because it is a typical interior panel with a long span of 35 feet in the east-west direction. Due to the panel's long span, it would require a thick slab in order to control deflection and thus the slab thickness chosen for this panel will also be applicable throughout the remainder of the flat slab system.



Figure 15 Interior flat slab panel

I simplified my analysis by using ACI 318 Direct Design Method (DDM) to determine the column strip moments as well as analyzed the slab as a flat plate system, neglecting the drop panels.

To begin my analysis, I determined the slab thickness according to table 9.5(c) in ACI 318. The determined slab thickness was 11". Next, I calculated the factored load w_u =337 psf and the uniform panel moment M=1193 k-ft. Using the direct design method, the uniform moment was longitudinally distributed to determine the panel's negative moment and midspan moment. The longitudinal moments were then distributed transversely to the column strip. After determining the column strip moments, I then proceeded to determine the column strip's reinforcement.

The simplified analysis resulted in a slab thickness of 11" and (24) #8 bars were determined to resist the column strip positive moment and (13) #8 bars were determined to resist the column strip negative moment. The original design uses an 8" slab thickness reinforced with #5 bars. The gravity spot check resulted in a different slab thickness and reinforcement bar size because the analysis was oversimplified. The system was analyzed as a flat plat instead of a flat slab as well as the direct design method was used to determine longitudinal and transverse moments, which is a conservative method for analyzing this slab panel. I will complete a more thorough analysis of this system in technical report 3 by treating the slab as a flat slab as well as using the Equivalent Frame Method to determine the exact moments.

Column # 50 Gravity Spot Check

Column 50 is an interior column that starts at the basement level and expands up to the roof level. I sized the column at the 1st and 5th levels. I chose these two locations because the slab cross section changes at the 5th level. As a design aid, I used the interaction diagrams from Reinforced Concrete: Mechanics and Design, 5th edition. After the analysis, it was determined that a 30"x30" column would be required to resist the axial load on the 1st level and a 24"x30" column on the 1st level. Based on the gross area, my cross section has a percent error of 4%, which is very close to the cross sectional area of the

Technical Report 3

original design. This error may be the result of the fact that the 1st level column has a slope, and I neglected this slope to simplify the analysis. The original column size for the 5th level is a 24"x24" column. Based on the gross cross-sectional area, my cross section has a percent error of 25%, which is relatively close to original design section. The result of this error could be a combination of dead load assumptions and simplified column analysis. In technical report 3, a more thorough analysis will be performed to determine the column size.



Figure 16 Column 50 with approximate tributary area

Lateral Loads

In this report, wind and seismic lateral loads were calculated to determine the loads acting on the structure's lateral system. To perform manual calculations for determining the lateral loads, simplifying assumptions were made. In addition, it was determined how much of the story force was distributed to each moment frame, which will be discussed later in this report. The hand calculations associated with the wind and seismic loads determination can be found in Appendices B and C.

Wind Loads

Wind loads were determined using the Main Wind Force Resisting System (MWFRS) procedure (method 2) in conformance to Chapters 26 and 27 outlined in ASCE 7-10. Due to the building's complex geometry, a rectangular building shape was assumed to simplify the wind load analysis, as can be seen in Figure 17.



Figure 17 Simplified building shape for wind load analysis

Most of the calculations for determining the wind pressures and story forces were performed in Microsoft Excel. In the analysis, windward, leeward, sidewall, and roof suction pressures were determined. Internal pressures were neglected in calculating the design wind pressure because internal pressures do not contribute towards the external wind pressures acting on the building.

The general wind load design criteria and guest effect factors can be found in Tables 5 and 6. The calculated approximate lower- bound natural frequency for the building was 0.544 Hz, which is less than 1 Hz, therefore the gust factors were calculated in the event the building is flexible.

Further, wind pressures in the N-S and E-W directions can be seen in Tables 7 and 8 with the corresponding vertical profile sketch of the wind pressures shown in Figures 18 and 19. The story forces were then determined based on the wind pressures. The resulting base shears were 1401 k for the N-S direction and 553 k in the E-W direction. The story forces and overturning moments for both the N-S and E-W directions can be found in Tables 9 and 10 along with the vertical profile of the story forces in Figures 20 and 21.

General Wind Load Design Criteria										
Design Wind Speed, V	115 mph	ASCE 7-10, Fig. 26.5-1A								
Directionality Factor, K _d - MWFRS	0.85	ASCE 7-10, Tbl. 26.6-1								
Directionality Factor, K _d - Mechanical PH	0.9	ASCE 7-10, Tbl. 26.6-1								
Exposure Category	В	ASCE 7-10, Sect. 26.7.3								
Topographic Factor, K _{zt}	1.0	ASCE 7-10, Sect. 26.8.2								
Internal Pressure Coeficient, GC _{pi}	0.18	ASCE 7-10, Tbl. 26.11-1								

Table 5 General wind design criteria

Gust Factor-MWFRS									
N-S Wi	ind	E-W V	Vind						
Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12	Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12						
0.861	0.861	0.945 0.926							
Gust F	Gust Factor-Mechnical Penthouse								
N-S Wi	ind	E-W V	Vind						
0.85		0.8	5						

Table 6 Guest Factors

Wind Pressures - N-S Direction							
		Distances	Wind Pressure				
Туре	Floor	(ft)	(psf)				
	1	0	11.3				
	2	12.54	11.3				
	3	23.17	13.0				
	4	33.79	15.0				
	5	44.42	16.0				
	6	55.04	16.8				
	7	65.67	17.6				
	8	76.29	18.4				
	9	86.92	19.0				
	10	97.54	19.6				
	11	108.17	20.6				
	12	118.79	20.6				
Windward Walls	Main Roof	130	21.6				
Leedward Walls	Levels 1-2	0 to 23.17	-13.5				
	Level 3 -12	23.17 to 130	-13.5				
Side Walls	All	All	-18.9				
	N/A	0 to 65	-32.5				
Roof	N/A	65 to 130	-20.2				
	N/A	130-260	-17.6				
	N/A	>260	N/				

 Table 7 N-S Wind Pressures



Figure 18 N-S wind pressure vertical pressure sketch

Wind Pressures - E-W Direction								
		Distances	Wind Pressure					
Туре	Floor	(ft)	(psf)					
	1	0	12.40					
	2	12.54	12.40					
	3	23.17	14.07					
	4	33.79	16.20					
	5	44.42	17.27					
	6	55.04	18.12					
	7	65.67	18.97					
	8	76.29	19.83					
	9	86.92	20.47					
	10	97.54	21.11					
	11	108.17	22.17					
	12	118.79	22.17					
Windward Walls	Main Roof	130	23.24					
Leedward Walls	Levels 1-2	0 to 23.17	-8.03					
	Level 3 -12	23.17 to 130	-8.51					
Side Walls	Levels 1-2	0 to 23.17	-20.75					
	Levels 3-12	23.17 to 130	-20.33					
	N/A	0 to 65	-26.14					
Roof	N/A	65 to 130	-26.14					
	N/A	130-260	-14.52					
	N/A	>260	-8.71					

Table 8 E-W wind pressures



Figure 19 E-W vertical wind pressure profile

Wind Forces - N-S Direction										
		Tributary Below				Tributary Above			Story Shear	Overturning
Floor	Elevation (ft)	Height (ft)	Length (ft)	Area (ft ²)	Height (ft)	Length (ft)	Area (ft ²)	(Kips)	(Kips)	Moment (K-ft)
PH Roof	148.5	18.5	199.83	3696.86	0	199.83	0	142.82	142.82	21208.42
Main Roof	130	5.31	314.58	1671.21	0	314.58	0	58.68	201.49	7627.83
12	118.79	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	115.69	317.19	13743.40
11	108.17	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	114.04	431.23	12335.55
10	97.54	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	112.38	543.61	10961.76
9	86.92	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	109.73	653.34	9537.91
8	76.29	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	107.74	761.09	8219.83
7	65.67	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	105.43	866.51	6923.30
6	55.04	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	102.78	969.29	5656.76
5	44.42	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	100.13	1069.41	4447.57
4	33.79	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	97.14	1166.56	3282.49
3	23.17	5.31	314.58	1671.21	5.31	314.58	1671.21	92.17	1258.73	2135.69
2	12.54	6.27	314.58	1972.42	5.31	314.58	1671.21	93.35	1352.08	1170.63
1	0	0	314.58	0.00	6.27	314.58	1972.42	48.92	1401.00	0.00
Total Base Shear =								1401 K		
								Total Overtu	rning Moment =	107,251 K-ft

Table 9 N-S Story forces, base shear, and overturning moment



Figure 20 Vertical profile of story forces in N-S direction

	Wind Forces - E-W Direction									
		Tributary Below			Tributary Above			Story Force	Story Shear	Overturning
Floor	Elevation (ft)	Height (ft)	Length (ft)	Area (ft ²)	Height (ft)	Length (ft)	Area (ft ²)	(Kips)	(Kips)	Moment (K-ft)
PH Roof	148.5	18.5	59.83	1106.86	0	59.83	0	42.76	42.76	6349.90
Main Roof	130	5.31	147	780.94	0	147	0	27.57	70.33	3583.67
12	118.79	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	48.75	119.08	5791.43
11	108.17	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	47.92	167.00	5183.62
10	97.54	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	47.09	214.09	4593.03
9	86.92	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	45.76	259.85	3977.18
8	76.29	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	44.76	304.60	3414.58
7	65.67	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	43.59	348.20	2862.72
6	55.04	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	42.26	390.46	2326.03
5	44.42	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	40.93	431.39	1818.06
4	33.79	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	39.43	470.82	1332.35
3	23.17	5.31	147	780.94	5.31	147	780.94	36.56	507.38	847.10
2	12.54	6.27	121.75	763.37	5.31	121.75	646.80	29.90	537.27	374.88
1	0	0	121.75	0.00	6.27	121.75	763.37	15.60	552.87	0.00
Total Base Shear =								553 K		
	Total Overturning Moment =									42,455 K-ft

Table 10 E-W Story forces, base shear, and overturning moment







Figure 21 Vertical profile of story forces in E-W direction

Seismic Loads

Seismic loads were determined using the Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure outlined in Chapters 11 and 12 in ASCE 7-10. To simplify the analysis, slab openings due to the stairwells and elevator shafts were neglected, therefore resulting in more conservative calculations. In addition, the 1st level weight was neglected and thus the 2nd-12th levels, main roof, and penthouse were considered for building weight calculations. The typical floor level slab thickness is 8" with small areas consisting of 12" slabs. For calculation simplification, a uniform slab thickness of 8" was used.

Since the lateral resisting system consists of a reinforced concrete moment frame in both the N-S and E-W directions, one analysis was performed to determine the seismic story forces and base shear for both directions.

Since this building has several stories above grade, building weight was determined by calculating the dead weight for the typical floor level and applying that story weight to the other floor levels (levels 2-12). The weight on the main roof and penthouse roof were calculated separately. The weight included for summing the total building weight were the weight of the slabs, columns, drop panels, and superimposed dead loads.

After the analysis, the determined base shear was 1001 kips, while the original design base shear was 645 kips. The calculated base shear results in a percent error of 55%. Based on this significant difference, it is possible that the dead load assumptions were conservative. In addition, all existing slab openings were neglected, also resulting in a conservative seismic base shear determination. Refer to Table 11 for seismic force analysis results.

				Seismic Fo	rces				
	Height to level i	Story Height	Story Weight			Story Force	Story Shear	Overturning Moment	
	hi	h _x	W _x			fi	Vi	Mz	Γ
level i	(ft)	(ft)	(kips)	w _x *h _x *	C _{VX}	(kips)	(kips)	(k-ft)	
PH Roof	0	148.0	754	779331	0.034	34	34	5036	
Main Roof	0	129.5	4000	3434311	0.150	150	184	19417	Γ
12	10.63	118.8	4737	3610992	0.157	158	342	18741	Г
11	10.63	108.2	4737	3170303	0.138	138	480	14982	Г
10	10.63	97.6	4737	2746158	0.120	120	600	11703	Γ
9	10.63	87.0	4737	2339639	0.102	102	702	8884	Γ
8	10.63	76.3	4737	1952037	0.085	85	788	6506	Γ
7	10.63	65.7	4737	1584929	0.069	69	857	4547	Γ
6	10.63	55.1	4737	1240295	0.054	54	911	2982	Γ
5	10.63	44.4	4737	920716	0.040	40	951	1786	Γ
4	10.63	33.8	4737	629751	0.027	28	979	930	Γ
3	10.63	23.2	4737	372723	0.016	16	995	377	Γ
2	12.54	12.5	4453	149344	0.007	7	1001	82	L
									Γ
		Σ=	56577	22930529		1001		95973	Γ

Table 11 Story forces, base shear, and overturning moment due to seismic loads

Computer Model







To analyze the existing lateral system, two computer models were created using ETABS, which is a computer and structures modeling and analysis program. The models were used to determine:

- the structure's story drifts;
- each moment frame's stiffness;
- which combination of lateral loads controlled the lateral system's design

Several assumptions were made when creating the lateral models. The columns were modeled as line elements and were then assigned section properties according to the column schedule. The base supports were modeled as pin supports since the foundation consists of spread footings, which are not very rigid and thus do not carry much moment. Each floor level was modeled as an area element and assigned a rigid diaphragm since the floor system consists of a two-way flat slab system. In addition, material properties were modified by eliminating the self-mass from the material definitions and applying the actual floor mass to the diaphragm by using the Additional Area Mass function.

For the first model, as can be seen in Figure 22, a shell element with a membrane and bending thickness of 8" was used to define the slab, but this model was unstable because there was a connectivity issue between the slab (area element) and the columns (line elements); essentially the model was analyzed as a series of pin based columns without lateral stability (the slab) supporting the columns. This model failed to represent the slab as a part of the lateral system.

A second model was created to model the slab more accurately by creating concrete moment frames and representing the slabs with equivalent beams modeled as line elements. An equivalent frame was used to determine the beam width. Since the average column-to-column spacing is 30 feet, the column strip width was determined to be 15 feet; therefore a beam width of 15 feet was chosen to represent the slab. In addition, columns that did not align with the major column lines were shifted to align with them to better create representative moment frames. The equivalent concrete moment frames, shown in yellow, can be seen in Figures 23 and 24.



Figure 23 Plan view of the rigid floor diaphragm (green) and moment frame locations (yellow lines)



Figure 24 3D perspectives of equivalent frames with rigid diaphragm (left) and bird's eye view of the moment frames (right) where the vertical green lines are the columns and horizontal yellow lines are the beams

Relative Stiffness and Rigidity



Figure 25 Moment frame layout with frame assignments

The distribution of lateral story forces at a given story level to the lateral force resisting systems at that story is done according to the relative stiffness of each lateral system. The stiffness of each system is determined by applying a unit load at the top story of each lateral force resisting system element. The stiffer the system, the more lateral load it will resist. The location and orientation of each moment frame can be seen in Figure 25. The stiffness of each frame was found in order to complete an analysis of both the direct and torsional shears, which will be discussed later in this technical report.

Each frame's stiffness was determined by applying a 1000 kip story load in the X –direction at the main roof level, which is the top level of the lateral force resisting system, and using ETABS to find the shear and displacement of each frame at the main roof level due to the 1000 kip story load. This same procedure was also applied to the Y-direction. The shear force and displacement in each frame at the main roof level were used to determine the frame's stiffness, K, where:

 $K_i = P/\delta$, where P is the shear force in the frame at the main roof level and δ is the frame's displacement due to the 1000 k story load.

After determining each frame's stiffness, the relative stiffness was calculated by comparing the stiffness of each frame to the frame with the greatest stiffness. Firstly, the frame with the largest stiffness was set to have a relative stiffness of 1. The remaining frames' relative rigidity was determined by dividing each frame's stiffness by the highest stiffness. This procedure was also applied to the Y-direction. Each frame's relative stiffness can be seen in Table 12.

Frame 7 has the highest stiffness for the X-direction and frame 14 has the highest stiffness for the Y-direction. As a result, these two frames will resist the largest portion of the story lateral load in the X-and Y-directions.

Relative Stiffness of Concrete Moment Frames									
Frame	Displacement (12th story)		shear force (12th story)		Stiffness, K		Relative Stiffness (%)		
	X dir (in)	Y dir (in)	X dir (Kips)	Y dir (Kips)	X dir (kip/in)	Y dir (kip/in)	X dir	Y dir	
1	0.981	1.33	48.01	0.45	48.93	0.34	18.25	0.28	
2	0.963	1.33	45.84	3.57	47.62	2.68	17.76	2.21	
3	0.959	1.33	32.96	0.17	34.39	0.13	12.83	0.11	
4	0.947	1.33	143.76	1.05	151.82	0.79	56.63	0.65	
5	0.934	1.33	191.68	2.20	205.25	1.65	76.56	1.36	
6	0.921	1.33	144.19	2.93	156.62	2.20	58.42	1.81	
7	0.913	1.33	244.70	1.51	268.10	1.14	100.00	0.93	
8	0.972	1.33	46.73	24.14	48.08	18.18	17.93	14.97	
9	0.961	1.33	14.74	4.02	15.34	3.03	5.72	2.49	
10	0.948	1.33	18.65	13.87	19.68	10.45	7.34	8.60	
11	0.935	1.33	18.88	13.04	20.20	9.83	7.54	8.09	
12	0.919	1.33	37.18	2.90	40.44	2.19	15.08	1.80	
13	0.981	1.33	10.15	116.66	10.35	87.60	3.86	72.11	
14	0.981	1.33	4.50	161.71	4.59	121.47	1.71	100.00	
15	0.981	1.33	0.46	72.05	0.47	54.14	0.17	44.57	
16	0.981	1.33	0.78	22.33	0.80	16.79	0.30	13.82	
17	0.981	1.33	1.13	44.34	1.15	33.34	0.43	27.45	
18	0.981	1.33	0.22	27.93	0.22	21.00	0.08	17.29	
19	0.981	1.33	2.44	22.95	2.49	17.26	0.93	14.21	
20	0.981	1.33	0.05	62.94	0.05	47.36	0.02	38.99	
21	0.981	1.33	0.08	28.29	0.08	21.29	0.03	17.53	
22	0.981	1.33	1.01	20.66	1.03	15.56	0.38	12.81	
23	0.981	1.33	5.72	89.70	5.83	67.54	2.17	55.60	
24	0.981	1.33	8.21	18.00	8.37	13.56	3.12	11.16	
25	0.930	1.33	15.64	71.47	16.81	53.82	6.27	44.31	
26	0.919	1.33	15.00	109.37	16.31	82.43	6.09	67.86	
27	0.956	1.33	7.83	10.35	8.19	7.79	3.05	6.41	
28	0.981	1.33	0.97	36.74	0.99	27.61	0.37	22.73	
	∑ She	ars in X-direction=	1062	≈1000					
	∑ She	ars in Y-direction=	985						

Table 12 Relative stiffness of the concrete moment frames
Load Combinations

To determine which lateral loads or combinations of lateral loads controlled the existing lateral system's design, several load combinations were considered using ASCE 7-10, as can be seen in Figure 26.

2.3.2 Basic Combinations. Structures, components, and foundations shall be designed so that their design strength equals or exceeds the effects of the factored loads in the following combinations:

- 1. 1.4(D+F)
- 2. $1.2(D + F + T) + 1.6(L + H) + 0.5(L_r \text{ or } S \text{ or } R)$
- 3. $1.2D + 1.6(L_r \text{ or } S \text{ or } R) + (L \text{ or } 0.8W)$
- 4. $1.2D + 1.6W + L + 0.5(L_r \text{ or } S \text{ or } R)$
- 5. 1.2D + 1.0E + L + 0.2S
- 6. 0.9D + 1.6W + 1.6H
- 7. 0.9D + 1.0E + 1.6H

Figure 26 Load Resisting Factor Design (LRFD) load combinations from Chapter 2 of ASCE 7-10

First, the four possible wind load cases were analyzed to determine which controlled the lateral system. This was done by using the ETABS model to find the shear forces in each frame due to each wind case. The 12th (main roof) story was used as a trial level to find the shear forces in the frames. The wind case that resulted, on average, in the highest shear forces was selected as the controlling wind case. The four possible wind cases can be seen in Figure 27. All four wind load cases can be found in Appendix B and the forces in each frame for each wind case can be found in Appendix D.



Figure 27 Design wind load cases from ASCE 7-10

To simplify the analysis, the only load combinations that were considered in this technical report were those that include wind and/ or seismic. This includes combinations 4-7 in Figure 26. In addition, only the lateral loads were compared, therefore the only combinations compared were 1.0E and 1.6W.

Based on the four wind cases, it was found that case 1 in the N-S direction controlled. This controlling wind case was then compared to the N-S and E-W seismic loads. The controlling wind load case was multiplied by a factor of 1.6 and the seismic loads were multiplied by a factor of 1.0.

Using ETABS, it was found that the North-South case 1 wind lateral load controlled the design in the N-S direction and seismic controlled the design in the East-West direction. This is consistent with the base shears discussed earlier in this report, where the base shear due to the North-South wind was 1401 kips and the base shear due to the seismic loads in the East-West direction was 1001 kips. Appendix D shows the forces in each frame at the 8th story due to the checked load combinations.

Building Torsion

When the Center of Mass (COM) and Center of Rigidity (COR) do not coincide, the building will be subjected to torsional effects caused by the lateral loads. These torsional effects must be accounted for in design. To determine the total building torsion, one must consider the torsion due to the location difference between the COR and COM and accidental torsion.

The accidental torsion is calculated by multiplying the lateral load by 5% of the building width, where the building width is perpendicular to the acting lateral load. The total torsion the building is subjected to is determined by adding the torsional moment to the accidental torsional moment. The total torsional moments were found in both the North-South and East-West directions, which can be seen in Tables 13 and 14. The North-South lateral load is controlled by the North-South wind load case 1 and the East-West direction is controlled by the seismic loads. The North-South direction is subjected to a 28,496 k-ft torsional moment and the E-W direction is subjected to a 9,431 k-ft torsional moment.

			Ruilding Torsion N	S Direction (W	(ind Controlling)		
Level	Story Force	Center of Mass	Center of Rigidity	eccentricity.e	Torsional Moment.	Accidental	Total Moment.
	,	(ft)	(ft)	(ft)	M _t (k-ft)	Moment, M _a (k-ft)	M _T (k-ft)
Main Roof	58.68	124.2	136	-11.8	-692.4	891	198.9
12	115.69	145.94	136	9.94	1150.0	1757	2907.3
11	114.04	145.94	136	9.94	1133.6	1732	2865.8
10	112.38	145.94	136	9.94	1117.1	1707	2824.1
9	109.73	145.94	136	9.94	1090.7	1667	2757.5
8	107.74	145.94	136	9.94	1070.9	1637	2707.5
7	105.43	145.94	136	9.94	1048.0	1601	2649.5
5	102.78	145.94	136	9.94	1021.6	1561	2582.9
6	100.13	145.94	136	9.94	995.3	1521	2516.3
4	97.14	145.94	136	9.94	965.6	1476	2441.1
3	92.17	145.94	136	9.94	916.2	1400	2316.2
2	93.35	137.33	134	3.33	310.9	1418	1728.8
						Σ=	28496.0

Accie	dental Torsion, M _a ((k-ft)- Y directio	on (N-S)
Level	Bx (ft)	0.05Bx (ft)	Ma
Main Roof	303.8	15.19	891
12	303.8	15.19	1757
11	303.8	15.19	1732
10	303.8	15.19	1707
9	303.8	15.19	1667
8	303.8	15.19	1637
7	303.8	15.19	1601
5	303.8	15.19	1561
6	303.8	15.19	1521
4	303.8	15.19	1476
3	303.8	15.19	1400
2	303.8	15.19	1418

Table 13 Total building torsion in the N-S direction (top) and the accidental torsion (bottom)

_								
			Build	ling Torsion, E-W Dir	ection (Earthqu	iake Controlling)		
	Level	Story Force	Center of Mass	Center of Rigidity	eccentricity,e	Torsional Moment,	Accidental	Total Moment,
			(ft)	(ft)	(ft)	M _t (k-ft)	Moment, M _a (k-ft)	M _T (k-ft)
	Main Roof	150	57.48	55	2.48	372	1102	1474
	12	158	57.48	55	2.48	391.84	1159	1550.84
	11	138	57.48	55	2.48	342.24	1018	1360.24
	10	120	57.48	55	2.48	297.6	881	1178.6
	9	102	57.48	55	2.48	252.96	751	1003.96
	8	85	57.48	55	2.48	210.8	627	837.8
	7	69	57.48	55	2.48	171.12	509	680.12
	5	54	57.48	55	2.48	133.92	398	531.92
	6	40	57.48	55	2.48	99.2	296	395.2
	4	28	57.48	55	2.48	69.44	202	271.44
	3	16	57.48	55	2.48	39.68	120	159.68
	2	7	51.87	59.4	-7.53	-52.71	40	-12.71
							Σ=	9431.09

	Accidenta	l Torsional,M _a (k-	ft)- X direction (E-W)	
level i	By	5%By	Ax	Μ _T
	ft	ft		k-ft
Main Roof	147	7.35	1.0	1102
12	147	7.35	1.0	1159
11	147	7.35	1.0	1018
10	147	7.35	1.0	881
9	147	7.35	1.0	751
8	147	7.35	1.0	627
7	147	7.35	1.0	509
6	147	7.35	1.0	398
5	147	7.35	1.0	296
4	147	7.35	1.0	202
3	147	7.35	1.0	120
2	121.75	6.09	1.0	40

Table 14 Total building torsion in the E-W direction (top) and the accidental torsion (bottom)

Lateral Load Distribution

Lateral force resisting systems resist lateral loads through direct shear and torsional shear. For 1000 Connecticut Avenue, to determine the portion of the story lateral force resisted by each frame, sample calculations were completed by solving for both the direct and torsional shears in each frame. The total shear in each frame was determined by adding the direct shear to the torsional shear.

Direct Shear

The frames that are parallel to the direct shear will participate in resistance. For example, the lateral loads acting in the North-South direction will be resisted directly by frame 8-28 and the lateral loads acting in the East-West direction will be resisted directly by frame 1-12 and 25-27.

The direct shear of each frame was calculated by multiplying the relative stiffness of each frame by the lateral load. The relative stiffness represents the portion of the story lateral load resisted by the frame.

Relative stiffness= $=\frac{Ki}{\Sigma^{ki}}$

Where,

 $K_{i}\xspace$ is the stiffness of the frame parallel to the lateral load

In the North-South direction, wind load case 1 was the controlling direct shear and seismic was the controlling direct shear in the East-West direction. A sample distribution of the lateral force acting on the 10th level can be found in table 15.

Technical		
Report 3	GEA JOINISON	STRUCTURAL OF HUN

Torsional Shear



Figure 28 Plan view showing the location of the Center of Mass (blue dot) and the Center of Rigidity (red dot)

If the Center of Mass and Center of Rigidity do not coincide, then the lateral loads will cause torsional effects; lateral loads act through the COM, but are resisted through the COR. Contrast to direct shear, all of the frames will participate in resisting these torsional effects. The torsional shear in each frame was first determined by finding the eccentricity between the COM and COR. Next, the distance between the frame and COR was determined where the distance is the moment arm between the COR and the frame. The torsional Shear equation with corresponding variable definitions can be seen below.

Torsional Shear, $V_i = \frac{Ved_iK_i}{\Sigma K_i d_i^2}$

Where,

V- story lateral load

e- eccentricity (distance between the Center of Mass and Center of Rigidity)

Ki- stiffness of the lateral force resisting system element

di- moment arm between COR to the lateral force resisting system element

Technical Report 3

To determine d for frames 8-12 and 25-27, the frames had to be broken down into X and Y components since they are located at an angel. Frames 8-12 are at a 27 degree angel from the positive X-axis and frames 25-27 are at a 117 degree angel from the positive X-axis. The frames separated into their corresponding X and Y components can be seen in Figure 29. A sample calculation of the torsional shears in each frame on the 10th level can be seen in Table 15. Graphs showing the direction of the direct and torsional shears acting on each frame due to a lateral load applied in the North-South direction can be found in Appendix E.





Figure 29 Frames 8-12 (left) and frame 25-27 (right) separated into their corresponding X-and Y-components

				North- S	outh Wind				
Frame	Lateral Force	Stiffness , K	e _x	ey	d	K*d ²	Direct Shear	Torsional Shear	Total Shear
	(kips)	(kips/in)	(ft)	(ft)	(ft)		(kips)	(kips)	(kips)
1	112.40	0.34	10	2.5	89.5	2710.2	0	0.0055	0.005
2	112.40	2.68	10	2.5	51.8	7202.4	0	0.0251	0.025
3	112.40	0.13	10	2.5	43.5	241.9	0	0.0010	0.001
4	112.40	0.79	10	2.5	19.9	312.6	0	0.0028	0.003
5	112.40	1.65	10	2.5	-6.3	65.7	0	-0.0019	-0.002
6	112.40	2.20	10	2.5	-33.2	2428.2	0	-0.0132	-0.013
7	112.40	1.14	10	2.5	-49.2	2748.2	0	-0.0101	-0.010
8	112.40	18.18	10	2.5	43.5	34402.0	2.8	0.1428	2.934
9	112.40	3.03	10	2.5	36.7	4078.4	0.5	0.0201	0.485
10	112.40	10.45	10	2.5	13	1765.9	1.6	0.0245	1.629
11	112.40	9.83	10	2.5	-15.1	2240.4	1.5	-0.0268	1.482
12	112.40	2.19	10	2.5	-49.2	5290.4	0.3	-0.0194	0.316
13	112.40	87.60	10	2.5	-136	1620184.6	13.4	-2.1506	11.296
14	112.40	121.47	10	2.5	-105.9	1362262.9	18.6	-2.3222	16.325
15	112.40	54.14	10	2.5	-70.9	272134.5	8.3	-0.6929	7.618
16	112.40	16.79	10	2.5	-40.9	28081.8	2.6	-0.1239	2.453
17	112.40	33.34	10	2.5	-19.6	12807.1	5.1	-0.1180	5.000
18	112.40	21.00	10	2.5	-15.9	5310.2	3.2	-0.0603	3.164
19	112.40	17.26	10	2.5	1.8	55.9	2.6	0.0056	2.655
20	112.40	47.36	10	2.5	31.5	46989.1	7.3	0.2693	7.539
21	112.40	21.29	10	2.5	48.8	50695.2	3.3	0.1875	3.455
22	112.40	15.56	10	2.5	73.8	84722.4	2.4	0.2072	2.595
23	112.40	67.54	10	2.5	91.5	565475.2	10.4	1.1156	11.484
24	112.40	13.56	10	2.5	121.5	200151.0	2.1	0.2974	2.379
25	112.40	53.82	10	2.5	109	639457.1	8.3	1.0590	9.321
26	112.40	82.43	10	2.5	113.8	1067442.6	12.7	1.6933	14.346
27	112.40	7.79	10	2.5	69.4	37523.0	1.2	0.0976	1.294
28	112.40	27.61	10	2.5	-78.4	169678.1	4.2	-0.3907	3.847
					∑K*d ² =	6226457.0			111.6

Table 15 Sample calculation of direct and torsional shears in each frame for a story lateral force acting on the 10th level

Story Drift and Lateral Displacement

The lateral displacements and story drifts were obtained from ETABS. This was done by using only unfactored wind and seismic loads. The inter-story drifts due to the un-factored wind load case 1 were compared to the H/400 allowable displacement, from ASCE 7-10, where H is the story-to-story- height. For the un-factored seismic loads, the inter-story drifts were compared to 0.020H from table 12.12-1 of ASCE 7-10, as can be seen in Figure 30. 1000 Connecticut Avenue has a risk category of II and has a reinforced concrete moment frame structural system, therefore the allowable drift will be 0.02H, where H is the story-to-story height.

	1	Risk Category	/
Structure	I or II	III	IV
Structures, other than masonry shear wall structures, 4 stories or less above the base as defined in Section 11.2, with interior walls, partitions, ceilings, and exterior wall systems that have been designed to accommodate the story drifts.	0.025 <i>h</i> _{ss} ^c	0.020h _{sx}	0.015h _{sx}
Masonry cantilever shear wall structures ^d	$0.010h_{sx}$	0.010h _{sx}	0.010h _{sx}
Other masonry shear wall structures	$0.007 h_{sx}$	$0.007h_{sx}$	0.007h _{sx}
All other structures	0.020h _{sx}	$0.015h_{sx}$	0.010h _{sx}

Table 12.12-1	Allowable	Story	Drift,	$\Delta_a^{a,b}$
---------------	-----------	-------	--------	------------------

"has is the story height below Level x.

^bFor seismic force-resisting systems comprised solely of moment frames in Seismic Design Categories D, E, and F, the allowable story drift shall comply with the requirements of Section 12.12.1.1.

^cThere shall be no drift limit for single-story structures with interior walls, partitions, ceilings, and exterior wall systems that have been designed to accommodate the story drifts. The structure separation requirement of Section 12.12.3 is not waived.

^dStructures in which the basic structural system consists of masonry shear walls designed as vertical elements cantilevered from their base or foundation support which are so constructed that moment transfer between shear walls (coupling) is negligible.

Figure 30 Table of allowable story drift for seismic loads

The serviceability for both the wind and seismic loads were found to be within the allowable limits. The story displacements and story drifts in the N-S and E-W directions can be found in Table 16.

					<u> </u>	
	Story Displace	ement/ Drift	t Due to Unfa	actored Wind L	oads	
Story	Height Above Grade	Actual Dis	placement	H/400	Story	Drift
	(ft)	X (in)	Y (in)	(in)	X (in)	Y (in)
Main Roof	129.42	0.3966	1.2078	0.31875	0.012	0.0532
11	118.79	0.3846	1.1546	0.31875	0.0143	0.0553
10	108.17	0.3703	1.0993	0.31875	0.018	0.0625
9	97.64	0.3523	1.0368	0.31875	0.0217	0.0716
8	86.92	0.3306	0.9652	0.31875	0.0253	0.081
7	76.29	0.3053	0.8842	0.31875	0.0281	0.089
6	65.67	0.2772	0.7952	0.31875	0.0312	0.0973
5	55.04	0.246	0.6979	0.31875	0.0341	0.1053
4	44.42	0.2119	0.5926	0.31875	0.0361	0.1125
3	33.79	0.1758	0.4801	0.31875	0.0383	0.1202
2	23.17	0.1375	0.3599	0.31875	0.0467	0.1338
1	12.54	0.0908	0.2261	0.3762	0.0908	0.2261
	Story Displacer	nent/ Drift	Due to Unfac	tored Seismic	Loads	
Story	Height Above Grade	Actual Dis	placement	0.02H	Story	Drift
	(f+)	V (in)	V (in)	(in)	V (in)	V (in)

 ()						
Story	Height Above Grade	Actual Dis	placement	0.02H	Story	Drift
	(ft)	X (in)	Y (in)	(in)	X (in)	Y (in)
Main Roof	129.42	0.7061	0.9809	0.2125	0.0198	0.04
11	118.79	0.6863	0.9409	0.2125	0.029	0.0486
10	108.17	0.6573	0.8923	0.2125	0.0379	0.0589
9	97.64	0.6194	0.8334	0.2125	0.0456	0.0686
8	86.92	0.5738	0.7648	0.2125	0.0521	0.0766
7	76.29	0.5217	0.6882	0.2125	0.0556	0.0821
6	65.67	0.4661	0.6061	0.2125	0.0593	0.0866
5	55.04	0.4068	0.5195	0.2125	0.1619	0.0895
4	44.42	0.2449	0.43	0.2125	-0.0378	0.0903
3	33.79	0.2827	0.3397	0.2125	0.0617	0.0904
2	23.17	0.221	0.2493	0.2125	0.0717	0.0952
1	12.54	0.1493	0.1541	0.2125	0.1493	0.1541

Table 16 Story displacements/drifts due to un-factored wind and seismic loads

Overturning and Stability Analysis

A building's foundation must be designed to support both axial loads and bending moments caused by the lateral loads. The support base of lateral force resisting columns is subjected to uplift forces caused by the lateral loads. As a result, these uplift forces subject the building to overturning moments.

1000 Connecticut Avenue's foundation is comprised of spread footings, which behave as pinned connections due to their low rigidity. As a result, the foundation does not participate in resisting moments caused by the lateral loads. The concrete slab combined with the columns behaves as a reinforced concrete moment frame where the slab-to-column connection is rigid. The rigid connection between the slab and columns are designed to resist the moments due to the lateral loads.

Through the analysis of the lateral system, the foundation was checked to determine if it is adequate to carry the moment due to the lateral forces on the slab, which transfers the load to the columns. The overturning moments were found by using the controlling lateral loads in each direction. It was determined in preceding sections of this technical report that wind load case 1 was the controlling lateral load for the North-South direction and the seismic load was the controlled the East-West direction. The wind and seismic loads were used to calculate the overturning moments by multiplying the lateral loads by the story height. The resisting moments were calculated by multiplying the total building weight by half of the building length, where the building length is in the direction in which the resisting moment is acting.

The overturning moment has to be less than 2/3 the resisting moment due to the dead load. It was found that the resisting moments in both directions were much greater than the overturning moments. Therefore, it was found that the slab-to-column moment frame systems below grade are adequate to carry the moments due to the lateral loads. Since the spread footings will behave as pinned connections, the columns will not transfer any moment to the foundation. Therefore the rigid connection between the slab and columns will carry the overturning moment. The overturning and resisting moments can be seen in Table 17.

		Overtur	ning Moment		
		N-S Win	d	E-W Seism	nic
Floor	Height (ft)	Lateral Force (kips)	Moment (k-ft)	Lateral Force (kips)	Moment (k-ft)
PH Roof	148	143	21164.0	34	5032.0
Main Roof	129.42	59	7635.8	150	19413.0
12	118.79	116	13779.6	158	18768.8
11	108.17	114	12331.4	138	14927.5
10	97.64	112	10935.7	120	11716.8
9	86.92	110	9561.2	102	8865.8
8	76.29	108	8239.3	85	6484.7
7	65.67	105	6895.4	69	4531.2
6	55.04	103	5669.1	54	2972.2
5	44.42	100	4442.0	40	1776.8
4	33.79	97	3277.6	28	946.1
3	23.17	92	2131.6	16	370.7
2	12.54	93	1166.2	7	87.8
Overturning N	Noment=	Σ=	107229		95893
		Posisti	ngMomont		
Bulding Wei	oht kins)	N ₂ S Win	d	F-W/Soicm	aic
building weig	Бискірэ	Length-Y direction (ft)	Moment (k-ft)	Length- X direction (ft)	Moment (k-ft)
56577	7	147	4158410	314.6	8899562

Table 17 Overturning and resisting moments in the N-S and E-W directions

Frame Checks



Figure 31 Critical column member with approximate tributary area

Spot checks were performed on column 50 on the 1^{st} level, as can be seen in Figure 31. This column was considered a critical member because it supports a large tributary area of 970.3 ft² and as a result is subjected to a large axial load of P_u =2362 kips, which was calculated in Technical Report 1. The column was checked for both axial and bending capacity.

To analyze the column, an interaction diagram was created to determine whether the column was able to support the required axial load, P_u , and bending moment, M_u . The interaction diagram design values, ϕP_n and ϕM_n , were compared to the moment obtained from ETABS and the 2362 kip axial load. It was found that the column is subjected to an in-plane bending moment of M_u =176 k-ft. This moment is due to the factored wind load case of 1.6W in the North-South direction.

After the analysis, it was shown that column 50 was adequate to support both the axial and bending loads. The spot check calculations for this column can be found in Appendix F.

Conclusion

Technical Report 3 analyzed 1000 Connecticut Avenue, NW Office Building's existing lateral system and confirmed its design by determining which combination of lateral loads controlled the lateral system design; checking the story displacement and story drifts for serviceability; analyzing the overturning moments due to the lateral loads and the resisting moments due to the total building weight; and spot checking critical members for strength adequacy.

The wind loads were determined by using Analytical Procedure (method 2) outlined in ASCE 7-10 and the seismic loads were determined by using the Equivalent Lateral Force Procedure outlined in ASCE 7-10. The wind loads were calculated for both the North-South and East-West directions and it was found that the lateral forces due to the wind load were greatest in the N-S direction, resulting in a 1401 kip base shear. One analysis was completed for determining the seismic story forces since the lateral force resisting system consists of a reinforced concrete moment frame in both the N-S and E-W directions. The calculated seismic base shear of 1001 kips compared to the design base shear of 645 kips resulted in a 55 % error. This shows that the dead load assumptions and analysis simplifications were conservative.

Further, a computer model of the lateral force resisting system was created in ETABS. The model was used to determine which combination of lateral loads controlled the lateral system's design; frame stiffness; and, to check the serviceability by determining the lateral displacements/story drifts due to the un-factored controlling lateral forces in both the N-S and E-W directions. It was found that the N-S wind load case 1 controlled the lateral load in the N-S direction and the seismic was the controlling lateral load in the E-W direction. Using the controlling lateral loads to determine drifts, it was found that the lateral displacements and story drifts were within the allowable code limits.

In addition, it was found that the columns do not transfer moments to the foundation since the spread footings will behave like pinned connections due to the footings' low rigidity. It was determined that the slab-to-column moment frame systems below grade are adequate to carry the moments due to the lateral loads.

Lastly, a member spot check was performed on column 50, an interior column. The column was checked for both axial load and moment. ETABS was used to determine the in-plane bending moment acting on the column due to the factored wind load in the N-S direction. An interaction diagram was created to compare P_u and M_u to φP_n and φM_n and the column was found to be adequate to carry the combined axial and bending load.

Appendix A: Gravity Load Calculations



November 16, 2011

Report 3



Technical Report 3

step 3; reinfor	cement design of ealumn stop in i	attender ponel		
item ru.	description	inter	ner Span	
1 10 11		Au-	Aut	
4	AL (K-F+)	-775	+ 417.6	
Ζ,	width of strip, b (in)	ESEM	151."	
3	$ \begin{array}{c} effective \ depth_{j} \ d \ Cin \\ H = 0.75 = 9.5 (0.621) \\ 7 \ 7 \ 7 \ 7 \\ t \ either \ result. = 5 \\ cover \ ber \ dim, \end{array} $	2.94"	2.17*	
4	$A_{n} = \frac{A_{u}}{a_{1}} (r-f+)$	- F61	949	
2	$R = \frac{M_n}{kd^{\frac{1}{2}}} C_{px_i}$	670	361	
	= An x 12000 156 + (1, 11")2			
	$ \begin{array}{l} \rho \text{from } h \cdot h_{\ell} A = 3 \text{in} \\ Rein forzed concrete, $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$ $$$	010122	8.0862	
3.	$A_{c} = pbd Cen=)$ $= pCissb(Cris)$	18. 12	4, 3J	
I.	As, min = 0.001762 = 0.0018 (ISL)(1)	3,1	3,1	
٩	N = larger of Jerr 0.31 #skor	61	31" 2 2 37	
10.	Nmin = width of strip	\mathcal{T}_{i} s ý $\equiv \mathcal{F}$	1	
-	$= \frac{155}{26n}$			
	To minimize the number of reinford bur size to the sist the positive map slab span, use $N = \frac{18.92}{0.23} = \frac{23}{0}$ To resist the negative moment at	ecting bars re ment in the mic urs the supports	subject , in create Hole of the million or $Vie = \frac{1.73}{0.79} = 1^3 \text{ bars}$	

Technical Report 3

GEA JOHNSON | STRUCTURAL OPTION



GEA JOHNSON | STRUCTURAL OPTION







Caravity Spot check -		
Column # 50	Tech 1	page 3 of 6
Multer of support = 4.04 kif ($\left(\frac{\frac{17.4+77}{2}}{2}\right)^2 = PF_2 + Ef_1$	
5 - 2m/3	(7)2 Pro FC	0
Auright of support = 104 (-	and the state stat	
11.		
use mus Fre EFF to be con	neervative	
Preliminary column size for	level 1	
assume boxs on all 4 fices	, fic there pri and fits to 1	Lrj
e = Au = Procil = 4.5		
Pu 2362		
	No boat	and the second second second
43 V PE # 2 7,5%	h	
- set for set reinforcement and	to be about as = 22 = 202	
h P	elh	
21 0.173	0,205	
2.4 0, 7.51	d.(€∮	
20 0.712	0,125	
		and the second se
assumptions to enable use of	design aid interaction duns	roms for determining the
pretiminary colo	ma size for level 1, use a s	pecific concrele strength of
fic zboco pet in	place of the existing colum	nn's specific concrele
fluensity of fic =	Foco pri	State and a second
- una G. Arab Cur A.	- I Concerte l'Acchine en	nd herves sthedites
Cre 8 = 0.75 Po = 0.	or and crice of the harder of	in asisti, een eerenn,
then \$Pn - 2.9 G	which b.h = den _ 2361	= \$14,5 in ?
44	2,9 2,9	
	=>b=h = 28.5	-> try 30 x 70" column
from fix Arth		
ØPa 2362		and the second second second
bh 304.80		
dun _ 586 x12 _ 0.40		
$\frac{d_{M_{H_1}}}{bh^2} \approx \frac{pp_{b-k+2}}{db \times 2a^2} = a_1 4a^2$		
$\frac{g_{M_{1}}}{bh^{2}} = \frac{g_{FG}(k_{12})}{g_{DK} z_{0}^{1}} = \frac{g_{1}(g_{D})}{g_{1}(k_{1})^{2}}$		
$\frac{d\mu_{0}}{bh^{2}} = \frac{PP6 \ k_{12}}{36 \times 20^{1}} = 0.40^{1}$ Followings $\rho_{5} = 1.3.7_{0}$		12 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
$\frac{d_{M_{0}}}{bh^{2}} = \frac{386 \ \text{Kiz}}{36 \times 20^{2}} = 0.40^{\circ}$ requires $p_{5} = 1.37_{0}$		
$\frac{d_{M_{1}}}{bh^{2}} = \frac{896}{34x} \frac{x_{12}}{z_{0}^{1}} = 0.40^{\circ}$ requires $p_{5} = 1.3.7_{0}$		
$\frac{\phi_{M_{1}}}{bh^{2}} = \frac{896}{36\times20^{1}} = 0.40^{\circ}$ Following: $p_{5} = 1.3.7_{0}$		





Technical Report 3

	Gravity spot check -		
	column # so	Tech i	page Sof 6
		·	
	Aarel lond on calumn at level	1 5	
2	* land above level 5: roof + 7 fl	leave	
	Li reduct. factor = [0.40		
	4.25.4	15 - 0.225	
	thes I	7 x 4333	
	PL = 4. No Ciao prf) (7 fles) (17)	0,3 ft2/fir 1 = 272	
	Po = 110 psf (770, 3 f+2/f+)(2	firs } + 110 psf 6 170, 3 ft / roof) = 8	54 K
	PLY = 150 PSF ("To, I ft' / roof)	= 19F.5 K	
	K 12 (854) + 14 (222) + 0.5 (115.5) = 1533 /	
	The contraction of the contracti		
	Unbejoaced moment for column	a at level 5	
	- Same as War for color	ta st level 1 Crefer tupp, 23	
	Arelininary Column size for le	wel 3	
9	assume burg and we beer	fic = 6000 psi and for the kei	
	e= Au _ 886×12 _ 6.9	14 ¹⁴	
	P4 1533		
	and the second se	8	
	assume d'= zes "		
	est la st		
	The set reaterceptat pati	a to p3 = 0103	and the second sec
	h r	<td></td>	
	12 0,773	0,315	
	2.4 " #, 712	0,281	
	30 " O, \$33	0.231	
	76" O. FLU	0,143	
	- Using fig. A-NA from Reini	forced concrete: much entice and	besign, sth edition,
	ter 0'2 0,75 , P3 2 0,03 an	d the share the second of the	Values aboves
	then dry - 28 for wh	ich 6h = 1122 - 547.5 m?	
	bh a cit	2.1	
		- => b=h= 23.7 -> try 2	N" & 30" COLONIA
	the family of the second		

Report 3

GEA JOHNSON STRUCTURAL OPTION





GEA JOHNSON | STRUCTURAL OPTION



Appendix B: Wind Load Calculations





-	and analysis	CLOSECT.	Sentor	
	39 = 34 = 24			
1	9-2 JZIA (2600 (0,544))		6 + 0,577 H AU3	
1		210 (3,600 (as44))	3,8136	
-		U e		
-	R= 1 R. R. E. CO.ST to	0.472.)		14 N 1 - 46 M
	JB			
F	P. = 7 17 M			
	CI + 10.3 /V 1) 5/3			
	N1 = <u>N1 =</u> V=			
	2= 0.6 h = 0.6 (130) = 78 f	t > 2 min = 20 Pt ok W		at a second second
	from table 26.9-1, & =	14.0 , 5 = 0.45 c= 0.20 ,	A = 320 Ft , E = 43.0	
-	T - (/ 38 146 - 1 - 1	33 \ ⁴ 4 - 0.24		
-	12= C (3) = 0.30(-	78.) 20.00		111111
1	La= + (=) = 320 (=)	$\left(\frac{W}{12}\right)^{4/3} = 426.24$		
1				
þ	VE= 6 (2) × = 1	0.45 / 28 144 (IF) CIIS) = 94,11		
	(33) (40 -	(33) (40)		
	11 0.544 (426.26) 2.46			
1	19.11			11.
-				and the second second
	$R_{f1} = \frac{7.47(2.46)}{(1100 + 27.46)^{1/3}} = 0.$, o 7 //		and the second s
	(1+10.3[2.00])			
		Charles and a second	Account 2 is counted	unded for concrete
100	analpino amila 1 18 2 anos	C (rom apping) and in	new my the television	bouldings)
F				
1				
-				
1	37			
	57			

	wind Anelysis	Tech 1	page 4 of 11	
0	North-South Direction Cl h= 134 ft L= 121.75 ft 8 = 314.58 ft	levels 1-1)		
	$R_{h} = \frac{4}{\sqrt{5}} R_{h} \frac{R}{\sqrt{5}} = \frac{4}{\sqrt{5}} C r$ $R_{h} = \frac{1}{\pi} - \frac{1}{2\pi^{2}} C r$	$(d, S^{1/2}) \frac{(130)^{7}}{14, 11} = \frac{3.46}{2.46}$ $= e^{-27L} = \frac{1}{3.46} = \frac{1}{2(3.46)^{7}}$	CI-e ^{-1(2,10)})	
	$M_B = \frac{46}{V_{\tilde{z}}} = 46 C^{0.5}$	$= 0, 2F9 - 0, 041F($ $\frac{549}{94.4} = 5, 36$	(0.731) = 0,247	
	$R_{B} = \frac{1}{\pi L} = \frac{1}{2\pi^{2}}CI - e^{-2}$		e ^{-2(P,Di)}) =	
0	$R_{L} = \frac{1}{\eta_{L}} - \frac{1}{2\eta_{L}^{2}}C_{L} - \frac{1}{e}$	$) = \frac{1}{10, P_{1}} - \frac{1}{2(0, P_{1})^{2}} C I - e$ = 0,0323 - 0,00422 (1.00)	= 0, aff	
		(e, H2) [0, 53 + 0,47 (0,0885]		
	$\varphi = \int \frac{1}{1+0.43 \left(\frac{B+h}{L_g}\right)^{4h2}} = \int \frac{1}{1+0.43 \left(\frac{B+h}{L_g}\right)^{4h2}}$	$\frac{1}{(1 + 0.52)^{2} (\frac{214}{325}, \frac{39}{325} + \frac{130}{325})^{0.52}} = \frac{1}{(0.325)^{1}}$	6,78	
	$= \boxed{0, r_{\rm E} 1}$	\$1)(e.t.)		
0				

Wind Analysis	Tech 1	pase s at 11	
E ast-west birection clevel h = 130 Ft L = 319.58 Ft	<u>s (- 1)</u>		
M _h = 3.96 C See N-5 direct	(na)		
$M_{\rm B} = 4.6 C_{0.5} 44) \frac{C(21.75)}{44.11} =$	5, 24 2(\$24) }		
$R_{B} = \frac{1}{324} - \frac{1}{2(224)^{2}} = 0.303 - 0.4476 (2.15^{2}) = 0.154 (3.15^{2}) = 0$	0,241		
$R_{L} = \frac{1}{2R_{ad}} = \frac{1}{2(2\pi)^{\frac{3}{2}}} CI = C$	-2 (28))		
$= \delta, \delta \Im \Sigma \Im = \delta, 000 \delta \Im F = \delta, \delta$ $\beta \equiv \sqrt{\frac{1}{\delta, 01}} (\delta, 07 F F) (\delta, 25 \Im) (\delta, 0)$	3 5 241)[0.53 + 0.47[0.025]]		
$Q = \sqrt{\frac{1}{1 + 0.67} \frac{(n175 + 130)}{(n25.76)}} \sqrt{\frac{n}{62}}$	= 0.83		
$G_{ij} = 0.925 \left(\frac{1+1.7(0.24)}{1+1.7} \right)$	$\frac{1}{2(2,7)^2} + \frac{1}{2(2,7)^2} \left(\frac{1}{2(2,7)^2} + \frac{1}{2(2,7)^2} \right)^{\frac{1}{2}}$		
= 0.745			
			_

	Wind Analysis	Tech 1	pase 6 06 11	
0	Vorth - South Direction h = 130 Ft L = 147 Ft B = 319.5P Ft	an clevels 3-12)		
	$\Re_{h} = \frac{9.6 (3.549) (130)}{79.11}$ $R_{h} = \frac{1}{3.96} - \frac{1}{2(3.94)^{2}}$	$= z^{\frac{3}{2},\frac{5}{2}} \left(\frac{-z^{\frac{3}{2},\frac{5}{2}}}{c_1 - e^{\frac{-1}{2}(\frac{3}{2},\frac{5}{2})}} \right) = 0.277$		
q	$L_{g} = \frac{4.6}{4.6} \left(6.5 \times 1 \right) \frac{(3)(.5F)}{3(4.1)}$	$-z(r, 3_{6}) = a_{12}$		
η	E= 15,7 (0.544) (147)	- 13,43		
R	$z = \frac{1}{13.09} = \frac{1}{2.015.051^2}$	CI- e -2(15,05)) = 0.073		
R:	$\int \frac{1}{\delta_{a1}} \left(\frac{\delta_{a2} \gamma_{FE}}{\delta_{a3}} \right) \left(\frac{\delta_{a2} \gamma_{FE}}{\delta_{a3}} \right)$)(0,112)[0,53 + 0,47(0,077)]		
φ=	$\int \frac{1}{1+c_1 \epsilon_3} \frac{1}{\frac{21}{426.2\epsilon}}$	= 0.7#		
6.F	$= 0.325 \left(\frac{1 + 1.7 (8.26)}{1 + 1.7 (8.26)} \right)$) 2442 (0.78) 2 + 4.042 * (4.351) * 1.7 (2.4) (4.26)		
O				
-				

Wind MRALYS	IS	tech 1	Print to Statistics	13	
East -west h = Doft	birection clev	eis 242)			
L = 314 58 Ft					
B = 147 Ft					
				16	
Mh = 3.46 CA	e N-s direction)			
Rh = 0.247 C:	cee N-s direction	n)			
MB 5 4.6 CO.54	9)(147) = 3.91 94.11				
R B = 1 - 2	1 c1- e	*(#1)) = 0.22			
M = 15,4 Cois	() (314.58) = 21	2.00			
	19,0	(11)			
$R_{L} = \frac{1}{2p} = \frac{1}{2}$	1 c1-e	J = 0,035			
R= 10 COLOTE) (0,243) (4,22) [a.53 + 0.47 (a.035)			-
and the second s					
J 0,01 = 0,484					
J 0,01 = 9,484					
∫ 0,01 = 0,484 Q∓ ∫	1	_ 0.82			
$ \begin{array}{c} \int \partial_{\tau} \partial_{\tau} dt \\ = \partial_{\tau} \cdot \nabla B \Psi \\ \hline \varphi \mp \\ \hline 1 + o_{\tau} \theta^{2} \end{array} $	1 (147 f 13a) ^{#,43}	- = ^{0, #2}			
	1 (147 f 13a (426, 24) ^{#43}	- = ^{0, 82}			
$\int d_{1} d_$	1 (147 + 130) (426, 22) 1 + 1.7(0, 26) Js	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	1		
$\int d_{r} d_$	$\frac{1}{(\frac{147 + 12a}{424, 24})^{4.42}}$ $\frac{1 + 1.7(0.24)}{1 + 1.7(3.24)}$	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial dt$ $= \partial_{y} NEY$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.41}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$	$\frac{1}{\left(\frac{143 + 13a}{426, 24}\right)^{4.4}}$	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \sigma_{r} \sigma_$	1 (147+13a) ⁴⁴¹ (426,22) ⁴⁴¹ 1+1.7(0.24) J 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$ (3 ² (0.82) ² + 9.042 ² (0.984) (0.26)	<u>,</u>		
$\int a_{1} dt$ $= g_{0} \sqrt{8} \sqrt{4}$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + a_{1} \sqrt{6}}$ $c_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0, 125]$	1 (147 + 130) 424, 24 1 + 1.7 (0.24) Ja 1 + 1.7 (3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>J</u> ²)		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial d d = \partial_{y} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{B} B$	$\frac{1}{\left(\frac{147 + 13a}{426, 24}\right)^{4.4}}$	$\frac{1}{p} = 0.82$ $\frac{1}{(a,b2)^2} + 4.042^2 Ca.484$ $\frac{1}{(a,b2)^2} + \frac{1}{(a,b2)^2} Ca.484$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial dt$ $= \partial_{x} N B Y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= 0.125 (-1)$	$\frac{1}{\left(\frac{143 + 13a}{426, 24}\right)^{4.4}}$	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial dt$ $= \partial_{x} N B V$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0, 125]$	1 (147+130) ⁴⁴ (426,21) ⁴⁴ 1+1.7(0,24) J 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial d d = \partial_{x} N B N$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.92}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-2)$ $= [0, 125]$	1 (147+13a) 426,22 1+1.7(0.24) J3 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>J</u> ,		
$\int 0_{10} dt$ $= \delta_{10} \sqrt{8} \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 \left(-\frac{1}{2} \left(-\frac{1}{2}\right)^{1}\right)$	1 (147+13a) 426,22 1+1.7(0.26) J3 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>J</u> z)		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial d d = \partial_{y} \sqrt{B} \sqrt{2}$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + \alpha_{s}} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} \sqrt{2} $	$\frac{1}{\frac{143 + 13a}{426, 24}} = 43$	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$ $\frac{1}{2} = (0.82)^{2} + 0.042^{2} - (0.080)$ $\frac{1}{2} = (0.82)^{2} + 0.042^{2} - (0.080)$	<u>p</u> ,		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial dt$ $= \partial_{y} \nabla B \nabla$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= 0.125 (-1)$	1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	- = 0.82 (1)* (0.82)* + 9.092* (0.989) () (0.26)	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial d d = \partial_{x} N B Y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0, 126]$	1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	- = 0,82 (3 ² (a,82) ² + 4,042 ² (a,984) (0,26)	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} dt$ $= \partial_{y} \sqrt{B} y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-125)$ $= 0.125$	$\frac{1}{\frac{1}{426,24}}$	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial dt$ $= \partial_{x} N B Y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0, 126]$	1 (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1) (1)	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>,</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} \partial d dt = \partial_{x} N B V$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.41}$ $C_{1} f = 0.725 (-1)$ $E [0, 125]$	1 (177 + 130) #41 (426, 22) #41 1 + 1.7 (0. 24) 5 1 + 1.7 (3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>F</u>)		
$\int \partial_{x} dt$ $= \partial_{x} N B Y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.43}$ $C_{1} f = 0.725 (-3)$ $= [0, 125]$	1 (177 + 130) 441 (426, 22) 1 + 1.7 (0.24) J 2 1 + 1.7 (3.	$\frac{1}{2} = 0.82$	<u>J</u>		
$\int \partial_{x} dt$ $= \partial_{x} N B Y$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.81}$ $C_{1} f = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0.125]$	1 (1+3+12a) 426,22 1+1.7(0.24) J2 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{7} = 0.82$			
$\int 0.01$ $= 0.484$ $Q = \int \frac{1}{1 + 0.43}$ $C_{1} = 0.125 (-1)$ $= [0.125]$	1 (147+12a) 424,22 1+1.7(0.24) J2 1+1.7(3.	$\frac{1}{7} = 0.82$			



November 16, 2011






	N-S Direc	tion		E-W Direction			
	h _i (ft)	L _i (ft)			h _i (ft)	L _i (ft)	
Level	(Height above grade of level i)	(Building Length at level i)	h _i *L _i	Level	(Height above grade of level i)	(Building Length at level i)	h _i *L _i
1	0	121.75	0	1	0	314.58	0
2	12.54	121.75	1526.75	2	12.54	314.58	3944.833
3	23.17	147	3405.99	3	23.17	314.58	7288.819
4	33.79	147	4967.13	4	33.79	314.58	10629.66
5	44.42	147	6529.74	5	44.42	314.58	13973.64
6	55.04	147	8090.88	6	55.04	314.58	17314.48
7	65.67	147	9653.49	7	65.67	314.58	20658.47
8	76.29	147	11214.63	8	76.29	314.58	23999.31
9	86.92	147	12777.24	9	86.92	314.58	27343.29
10	97.54	147	14338.38	10	97.54	314.58	30684.13
11	108.17	147	15900.99	11	108.17	314.58	34028.12
12	118.79	147	17462.13	12	118.79	314.58	37368.96
Main roof	130	147	19110	Main roof	130	314.58	40895.4
Σ=	852.34		124977.35	Σ=	852.34		268129.1
L _{eff} =	146.63			L _{eff} =	314.58		

Velocity Pressure Coefficients, K _z , and							
Velocity Pressures, q _z							
Level	Elevation (ft)	Kz	qz				
1	0	0.57	16.40				
2	12.54	0.57	16.40				
3	23.17	0.66	18.99				
4	33.79	0.76	21.87				
5	44.42	0.81	23.31				
6	55.04	0.85	24.46				
7	65.67	0.89	25.61				
8	76.29	0.93	26.76				
9	86.92	0.96	27.63				
10	97.54	0.99	28.49				
11	108.17	1.04	29.93				
12	118.79	1.04	29.93				
Main Roof	130	1.09	31.37				
PH Roof	148.5	1.13	34.43				

	_						
	Gu	ist Factor-MV	VFRS				
Variable	N-S	N-S Wind E-W Wind					
n ₁ =n _a		0.5	544				
gq=gv		3	.4				
g _R		4.0)42				
Z _{mean}		7	8				
I _{z, mean}		0.	26				
L _{z, mean}		426	i.26				
V _{z,mean}		94	.11				
Ni		2.46					
R _n		0.0788					
β		0.01					
٩h		3.	46				
R _h		0.2	247				
	Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12	Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12			
۹. B	8.36	8.36	3.24	3.91			
R _B	0.112	0.112	0.261	0.22			
٩ _L	10.84	13.09	28	28			
RL	0.088	0.073	0.035	0.035			
R	0.353	0.351	0.527	0.484			
Q	0.78	0.78	0.83	0.82			
G _f	0.861	0.861	0.945	0.926			
	Gust Fact	or-Mechnical	Penthouse	2			
Variable	N-S	E-W	Wind				
G _f	0	.85	0	.85			

November 16, 2011

Wall Pressure Coeffcients, C _p							
Description	N-S	Wind	E-W Wind				
	Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12	Levels 1-2	Levels 3-12			
L/B	0.39	0.47	2.58	2.14			
Windward Walls		0.8					
Side Walls		-0.7					
Leeward Walls	-0.5	-0.5	-0.271	-0.293			
	Forc	e Coefficient,	C _f				
Description	N-S Wind E-W Wind			Wind			
	Mech	nnical Penthou	ise				
h/D	1	1.32	1.32				

Doof Droc		ionts Co
ROOT Pres	sure coerric	aents, cp
Description	N-S Wind	E-W wind
h/L	0.88	0.41
0 to h/2	-1.204	-0.9
h/2 to h	-0.748	-0.9
h to 2h	-0.652	-0.5
>2h	N/A	-0.3

	CASE 3 W	/IND LOAD	
Wind Forces	- N-S Direction	Wind Forces	s - E-W Direction
	Story Force		Story Force
Floor	(Kips)	Floor	(Kips)
PH Roof	107.11	PH Roof	32.07
Main Roof	44.01	Main Roof	20.68
12	86.77	12	36.57
11	85.53	11	35.94
10	84.29	10	35.32
9	82.30	9	34.32
8	80.81	8	33.57
7	79.07	7	32.69
6	77.08	6	31.70
5	75.09	5	30.70
 4	72.86	4	29.57
3	69.13	3	27.42
2	70.01	2	22.42
1	36.69	1	11.70

		CASE 4 WIND LO	DAD		
Wind	Wind Forces - N-S Direction			- E-W Direction	
	Story Force	Μ _τ	Story Force	Μ _τ	$M_{\tauN-s} + M_{\taus-w}$
Floor	(Kips)	(k-ft)	(Kips)	(k-ft)	(k-ft)
PH Roof	80.41	2410.1	24.07	216.1	2626.2
Main Roof	33.03	1558.8	15.52	342.2	1901.0
12	65.14	3073.6	27.45	605.2	3678.8
11	64.20	3029.6	26.98	594.9	3624.5
10	63.27	2985.6	26.51	584.6	3570.1
9	61.78	2915.2	25.76	568.0	3483.2
8	60.66	2862.4	25.20	555.6	3418.0
7	59.35	2800.8	24.54	541.2	3341.9
6	57.86	2730.4	23.79	524.6	3255.0
5	56.37	2660.0	23.04	508.1	3168.1
4	54.69	2580.8	22.20	489.5	3070.2
3	51.89	2448.7	20.58	453.9	2902.6
2	52.56	2480.0	16.83	307.4	2787.4
1	27.54	1299.6	8.78	160.4	1460.0

Appendix C: Seismic Load Calculations



Technical Report 3

GEA JOHNSON | STRUCTURAL OPTION



3	Setsmic Analysis	Tech 1	pase	3 4 4 5	2
	Building weight:				
		denous durante			
1	- neglect let level weight	t because level I will not a	ntribule towards	resisting the	
	- for esteutation timetica	the state amount due to sta	united and alevel	her shells were possibled	
	Herefore realization a	pure conservative calculation			
	and level				
	Pead lands;				
	8" thick normal int conce	ches iso pet x & ft = 100 p	ef.		_
		n			
	section will a secule				
	caluma whi - 486R				
	brop porel ut = 248 k				
	Scenic & War-162				
	Wand level = Cloo 110)psf	(31, 284 FAR) + 280 pir CP3	ine fit t ups wt	248 KE . 4452 K	
	levels 2-12				
	- dead lange and the se	and as the level i			-
	W = (110 pet) (34, 284 f	A+) + 250 pif (7146 ft) + 480	K + 248K = 473	(K / , (lefirs) = 47364	K
	the state of the s			4 7 18-	
1	Mein roof				
	Dead loads;				
	In thick harmal we can	number ships to be for			
	JOL = lo pof				
	curtain wall = 250 plf				
	W		A Rear F		
	main rouf = (110 prf)(24 181 +1+) 1 230 MECTING 4	+1 = 1000 K		
	Mechanical Penthouse	roof a value has dealer			
	head loads;				
	P" Sieb T the ps				
	ave a pre				
	W = = [[(03).	416 CTIFI (+++) = 734 K			
	the mon -				
	and the second second				
	Takas building head b	lacd = 1982 + 197764 + 4000	+ 754= 56, 870 K		
	2				

	Seismic analysis	Tech 1	pase tof 5	
				1
V	steps; sile class -> orien :	n seatechnical report,	"C" Curry dense soil and hard rock	From
	step 2: spectral response ac	celeration ecrists, 55 -> from	Fig. 22-1, 55 = 0.20	
	at 1 - second	period, s, -> from F	9,22-2 , 5, = 0,06	
	step 3: site coefficients and	adjusted maximum c	nandered E.Q. spectral response	~
	acceleration paramete	rs Foon table 11.4-1		
	SMS = Fass with ss cats an	nd sile class c		
	Fa = 1.2 = 3 =	$im_3 = i \cdot i \cdot c \cdot$		inis I in I
	with si coil an	nd stile class C		
	Step 4 : Design Spectral response at 1-sec. period , Sp	e acceleration porum for s?, dump =) for	elers at short periods, sos, and on sect. 11.4.4	
6	s _{bs} = 2/3 sms = 2/3 C	0,24}= 0.16		
	501 = 213 5m, = 213 Co.1	1023 c 0. d6 P		
	steps: occuponcy collegory or	nd importance factors		
	occupancy calebory I	: -> from lable lis-	<u>.</u>	
	importance factor, I	-> from table 1.9,2 ,	T = 1.0	
	step b: seismic design cates	ery, soc		
	soc based on short p	versed response acrele	rations parameter -2 from take 11.6	-1
	for Spy = 0.16 can	d occ. II - suc z "A	it ince it	
	spe based on 1-sec. n	esponse acceleration	poraméter	
0	for suit proble and	oce. II ~ suc = " Q"		
		Strike Fi	it callegory & is more severe than risk a	slesony d,
				the second se



			Floor Weight 0	Calculations		
Floor	Area	Perimeter	8" slab weight	Superimposed DL	Curtain Wall	Total Weight
	(ft ²)	(ft)	(psf)	(psf)	Weight (plf)	(Kips)
2	31889.00	834.6	100	10	250.00	3716
3	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
4	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
5	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
6	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
7	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
8	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
9	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
10	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
11	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
12	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
Main Roof	34289.00	914.6	100	10	250.00	4000
PH Roof	7181.00	381.8	100	5	N/A	754
				Total	Floor Weight=	48475

	Typical Floor Colum	nn Weight (4th I	Level)		
Size		Length	Unit Weight	Volume	Weight
(in x in)	Quantity	Clear Span(ft)	(lbs/ft ³)	(ft ³)	(Kips)
18X36	4	9.96	150	179.25	26.89
16X32	7	9.96	150	247.85	37.18
18X28	1	9.96	150	34.85	5.23
18X42	3	9.96	150	156.84	23.53
24X30	6	9.96	150	298.75	44.81
24X24	10	9.96	150	398.33	59.75
24 dia	12	9.96	150	375.2	56.28
16X48	2	9.96	150	106.22	15.93
16X66	1	9.96	150	73.03	10.95
14X48	2	9.96	150	92.94	13.94
12X24	5	9.96	150	99.58	14.94
22X26	1	9.96	150	39.56	5.93
20.5X24	1	9.96	150	34.02	5.10
22X24	1	9.96	150	36.51	5.48
14X96	1	9.96	150	92.94	13.94
24X36	2	9.96	150	119.50	17.93
28X28	3	9.96	150	162.65	24.40
12X48	1	9.96	150	39.83	5.98
11X24	4	9.96	150	73.03	10.95
16X96	1	9.96	150	106.22	15.93
14X66	1	9.96	150	63.90	9.58
28 dia	8	9.96	150	340.5	51.07
18X64	1	9.96	150	79.67	11.95
		Column Weigh	it per floor (11	total flrs)=	488
			Total Colum	n Weight=	5365
	Typical Floor Drop Pa	anel Weight (4th	h Level)		
Size		Thickness	Unit Weight	Volume	Weight
(in x in)	Quantity	(in)	(lbs/ft ³)	(ft ³)	(Kips)
	Continuous Drop (around				
36 wide	perimeter of all floors)	3.50	150	800.28	120
min. 68X68	40	8.00	150	856.3	128
	Dr	op Panel Weigh	t per floor (11	total flrs)=	248
		T	otal Drop Pan	el Weight=	2733

Appendix D: Controlling Wind Load Case and Controlling Load Combination

Controlling Wind Case

V	Vind Load Case 1- sto	ry 12		N N	Wind Load Case 2- lev	vel 12
Frame	X-Direction	Y-Direction		Frame	X-Direction	Y-Direction
	Shear Force (kips)	Shear Force (kips)			Shear Force (kips)	Shear Force (kips)
1	5.44	1.74		1	3.22	7.92
2	5.06	1.45		2	3.26	2.91
3	3.13	0.41		3	2.1	2.29
4	13.2	1.86		4	9.08	6.94
5	8.57	2.53		5	6.45	1.35
6	16	0.25		6	12.65	5.04
7	22.71	5.71		7	19.77	25.1
8	3.86	11.57		8	2.81	6.46
9	0.065	2.56		9	0.11	3.42
10	1.01	9.4		10	0.31	10.21
11	1.37	9.14		11	0.54	9.53
12	2.98	0.63		12	2.48	2.96
13	3.02	49.77		13	0.33	22.33
14	1.57	68.44		14	0.76	35.68
15	0.16	30.73		15	0.36	18.78
16	0.08	6.12		16	0.03	4.57
17	0.048	3.79		17	0.41	1.46
18	0.014	8.81		18	0.12	7.01
19	0.56	8.57		19	0.5	6.83
20	0.17	26.31		20	0.13	21.3
21	0.02	8.65		21	0.045	7.1
22	0.48	4.72		22	0.33	4
23	1.34	37.11		23	0.15	34.63
24	1.08	2.71		24	1.1	1.52
25	3.81	10.4		25	1.8	10.82
26	3.56	10.87		26	2.01	13.65
27	2.43	7.08		27	1.48	5.81
28	0.16	16.26		28	0.06	10.34
Average Shear=	3.6	12.4	kips	Average Shear=	2.6	10.4

Controlling wind case

Wind Load	Case 3- level 12	Wind Load	Case 4- level 12
Frame	Shear Force (kips)	Frame	Shear Force (kips)
1	2.78	1	3.5
2	4.9	2	0.3
3	2.04	3	0.1
4	8.51	4	1.6
5	8.33	5	5.9
6	11.81	6	13.3
7	21.31	7	33.7
8	11.69	8	6.9
9	2.25	9	2.5
10	5.83	10	7.0
11	6.08	11	6.7
12	2.63	12	4.1
13	39.6	13	17.0
14	52.51	14	26.2
15	23.18	15	13.8
16	4.53	16	3.5
17	2.88	17	1.4
18	6.6	18	5.4
19	6.85	19	5.5
20	19.61	20	16.1
21	6.5	21	5.4
22	3.9	22	3.3
23	26.82	23	25.9
24	1.22	24	0.3
25	6.87	25	7.7
26	5.52	26	8.5
27	5.6	27	4.7
28	12.31	28	7.7
Average Shear=	11.2 kips	Average Shear=	8.5 kips

Controlling Load Combination

Earthquake- I	East-West - Story 8	Earthquake- I	North-South - story 8	Wind Load Case	1- North-South - story 8
Load Com	bination- 1.0E	Load Co	mbination- 1.0E	Load Cor	nbination- 1.6W
Frame	Shear Force (kips)	Frame	Shear Force (kips)	Frame	Shear Force (kips)
1	33.5	1	1.0	1	6.9
2	32.2	2	2.2	2	1.1
3	24.9	3	0.4	3	2.5
4	91.0	4	1.1	4	5.2
5	138.3	5	0.3	5	2.3
6	100.6	6	3.0	6	2.6
7	161.6	7	2.5	7	19.7
8	36.7	8	14.3	8	18.9
9	13.8	9	1.3	9	4.3
10	15.9	10	6.9	10	13.3
11	15.4	11	5.5	11	11.2
12	27.4	12	1.8	12	6.7
13	5.5	13	76.4	13	99
14	2.9	14	107.7	14	144
15	0.6	15	47.3	15	66.2
16	0.6	16	19	16	26
17	0.7	17	34	17	48.5
18	0.0	18	22.2	18	31.9
19	1.0	19	19.2	19	29.2
20	0.4	20	48.3	20	76.1
21	0.0	21	21.7	21	33.7
22	0.3	22	17	22	26.8
23	3.0	23	60.4	23	102
24	5.6	24	19.2	24	31.2
25	7.3	25	43.4	25	76
26	11.5	26	69.6	26	125
27	2.6	27	11.7	27	16.7
28	0.5	28	22.3	28	31.3
Average Shear=	26.2 kips	Average Shear=	24.3 kips	Average Shear=	37.8 kips





Λ

Appendix E: Direction of Direct and Torsional Shears Acting on Lateral Resisting Moment Frames



Plan view showing the direction of the direct shears and torsional shears acting on the 0° and 90° moment frames due to a N-S story lateral load

Appendix F: Frame Spot Checks

		pase 1 of 4	
Column to	reinforcement: 16 # 11's 64, 45	$f'_{c} = foco pr_{i}$ $f_{y} = 6 + ks_{i}$	Cy = 40 21000 = 0.00201
1114		1 - 21	
da	-monphon.	d. = 9°	
4	11.A .	d 3 = 15*	
	34" = H	dy = 31"	
1		ds = 27"	
		9* 5 33.	
24= = b	Pu=	zzisz k , Mik = 176 Fft	
1			
- Arial Stransth, P.			
Poze.Fsf'c Clah-E	A_{s_i}) $f \in A_{s_i}$ f_{s_i}		
= 0, PS(P) [24(74)	- 1.56 (16)] + 1.56 (16)(60)		
= 7203 k			
- Relanced - show the			
- entrance - attails start	sser i mb, rb		
CE 4,003 d mor =	0.007 (33) = 19.52*		
C = 4,003 A,003 + 54 d mag =	0.007 (33) = 19.52"		
$\frac{c_z}{a,aa_3} d_{pag} =$ $\frac{c_z}{a,aa_3} d_{pag} =$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (32) = \frac{11.52^{\circ}}{11.52^{\circ}}$	e.	
$\varepsilon = \frac{a_1aa_3}{a_1aa_3} d_{mag} =$ $\varepsilon_{s_1} = \frac{a_1aa_3}{c} (c - d_1)$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (33) = 19.53^{\circ}$ $= \frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.0035 3$	€y	
$\epsilon_{s_1} = \frac{0.003}{c} \epsilon_{s_1} = \frac{0.003}{c} \epsilon_{s_1}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (33) = \frac{11.52^{\circ}}{11.52^{\circ}}$ $= \frac{0.003}{11.53} (11.53 - 3) = 0.0035^{\circ}$	€γ	
$\frac{c_{z_{1}} a_{0} a_{0}}{a_{0} a_{0} + \epsilon_{y}} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_{1}}}{c_{s_{1}}} = \frac{a_{0} a_{0}}{c} (c_{-} d_{1})$ $f_{s_{1}} = c_{s_{1}} \cdot c_{s} = 0.002 c_{1}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.002 \pm 0.00207} (33) = 19.52^{\circ}$ $\frac{0.002 \pm 0.00207}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00357$ $\frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00357$ $1000 \text{ km}(15.35 \text{ km}(15.5))$	εy	
$\frac{c = a_1 a a_3}{a_1 a a_3 + \xi_y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{\varepsilon_{s_1}}{\varepsilon} = \frac{a_1 a a_3}{c} (c - d_1)$ $f_{s_1} = \varepsilon_{s_1} \cdot \varepsilon_s = a_1 a a_2 \varepsilon_3$ $f_{s_2} = a_{s_2} \cdot \varepsilon_s = a_{s_1} \cdot \varepsilon_s$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (33) = 11.53^{+}$ $= \frac{0.003}{11.53} (11.53 - 3) = 0.0035 3$	€y	
$\frac{c_{z_{1}} a_{0} a_{0} a_{0}}{a_{0} a_{0} z_{1} + \epsilon_{y}} d_{max} =$ $\frac{\epsilon_{s_{1}}}{\epsilon_{s_{1}}} = \frac{a_{0} a_{0} a_{0}}{c} (c_{0} - d_{1})$ $f_{s_{1}} = \epsilon_{s_{1}} \cdot \epsilon_{s} = 0.002 s_{0} c_{0}$ $\epsilon_{s_{2}} = \frac{a_{0} a_{0} a_{0}}{c} (c_{0} - d_{2}) =$	$\frac{0.007}{0.002 \pm 0.00207} (33) = 19.52^{+}$ $z = \frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 = 3) = 0.0035.7$ $1000 \text{ km}(c.73.5) \text{ km}(CC)$ $1000 \text{ km}(c.73.5) \text{ km}(CC)$ $0.0010 \neq E_y$	€y	
$\frac{c = a, aa_3}{a, aa_3} = d_{mag} = \frac{c}{a, aa_3} = \frac{c}{a} = \frac{c}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (33) = 19.53^{\circ}$ $\frac{0.007}{0.002 \pm 0.00207} (33) = 0.00357$ $\frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00357$ $1000 \text{ km}(c) = 12.5 \text{ km} \text{ Ccl}$ $0.0016 \neq \text{ Ky}$	εy	
$\frac{c_{z_{1},a_{0}3}}{a_{z_{0}003}\pm s_{y}} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_{1}}}{c_{s_{1}}} = \frac{a_{z_{0}003}}{c} (c - d_{1})$ $f_{s_{1}} = f_{s_{1}} \cdot F_{s} = 0.0025C2$ $f_{s_{2}} = \frac{a_{z_{0}03}}{c} (c - d_{1}) =$ $f_{s_{2}} = f_{s_{2}} \cdot F_{s} = 46.4 \text{ km}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007 \pm 0.00707} (33) = 19.53^{+}$ $= \frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00357$	€y	
$\frac{c = 4.003}{0.003 + 5y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_1} = 0.003}{c} (c - d_1)$ $f_{s_1} = f_{s_1} \cdot F_s = 0.0025C1$ $f_{s_2} = \frac{0.003}{c} (c - d_2) =$ $f_{s_2} = f_{s_2} \cdot F_s = 76.4 \text{ ks}_1$ $F_{s_3} = 0.000654 < F_y$	0.007 0.007 0.002 + 0.00207 2 0.003 (19.53 - 3) = 0.0035 7 1900 km) = 72.5 km [c] 0.0016 2 Ey [c]	£y	
$\frac{c = 4,003}{0,003 \pm 5y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_1} = \frac{0,003}{c} (c - d_1)}{c}$ $f_{s_1} = \frac{c_{s_1} \cdot c_s}{c} = 0.0025C2$ $\frac{c_{s_2} = \frac{0,003}{c} (c - d_2) =}{c}$ $f_{s_2} = \frac{c_{s_2} \cdot c_s}{c} = 46.4 \text{ km}$ $\frac{c_{s_2} = c_{s_2} \cdot c_s}{c} = 46.4 \text{ km}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007 \pm 0.00707} (33) = 19.53^{\circ}$ $= \frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00357$	Ey	
$\frac{c = a_{1}aa_{3}}{a_{1}aa_{3} + f_{y}} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c}{s_{1}} = \frac{a_{1}aa_{3}}{c} (c - d_{1})$ $f_{s_{1}} = \hat{c}_{s_{1}} \cdot \bar{c}_{s} = 0.0025C2$ $\hat{c}_{s_{2}} = \frac{a_{1}aa_{3}}{c} (c - d_{2}) =$ $f_{s_{2}} = \hat{c}_{s_{2}} \cdot \bar{c}_{s} = 46.4 \text{ ks};$ $\hat{c}_{s_{3}} = 0.000654 \text{ c}_{y}$ $f_{s_{3}} = 20.2 \text{ ks}; \text{ CC}$	0.007 0.007 0.007 = 0.003 (11.53 - 3) = 0.0075 7 1000 km) = 72.5 km [c] 0.0016 2 Ey [c]	εy	
$\frac{c = 4.003}{0.003 \pm 5_{y}} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_{1}} = 0.003}{c} (c - d_{1})$ $f_{s_{1}} = f_{s_{1}} \cdot f_{s} = 0.003 (c - d_{2}) =$ $f_{s_{2}} = \frac{0.003}{c} (c - d_{2}) =$ $f_{s_{2}} = f_{s_{2}} \cdot f_{s} = 146.4 \text{ ksi}$ $f_{s_{3}} = 20.2 \text{ ksi} \text{ CC}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007} (33) = 19.57^{\circ}$ $\frac{0.007}{0.002 \pm 0.00107} (33) = 0.00157$ $\frac{0.003}{19.53} (19.53 - 3) = 0.00157$ $1000 km = 12.5 km = Ccl$ $0.0010 < E_{y}$ Ccl	Ey	
$\frac{c = 4,003}{0,003 \pm 5y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_1} = \frac{0,003}{c} (c - d_1)}{c}$ $f_{s_1} = f_{s_1} \cdot F_s = 0,003502$ $f_{s_2} = \frac{0,003}{c} (c - d_2) =$ $f_{s_2} = \xi_{s_2} \cdot F_s = 46.4 \ k_{s_1}$ $f_{s_3} = 20.2 \ k_{s_1} \ C C \end{bmatrix}$ $f_{s_3} = 20.2 \ k_{s_1} \ C C \end{bmatrix}$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007 \pm 0.00707} (33) = 19.57^{\circ}$ $\frac{0.007}{19.57} (19.57 - 3) = 0.00757$ $\frac{0.003}{19.57} (19.57 - 3) = 0.00757$ $\frac{1000}{19.57} (19.57 - 3) = 0.00757$	Ey	
$\frac{c = 4,003}{0,003 \pm 5y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{E_{s_1} = 0,003}{c} (c - d_1)$ $F_{s_1} = E_{s_1} \cdot E_s = 0,0035C3$ $E_{s_2} = \frac{0,003}{c} (c - d_2) =$ $F_{s_2} = E_{s_2} \cdot E_s = 46.4 \text{ ks};$ $E_{s_3} = 20.2 \text{ ks}; CC3$ $E_{s_4} = -4.6 \text{ ks}; CT3$	0.007 0.007 0.007 = 0.003 (11.53 - 3) = 0.0075 7 1000 km) = 72.5 km [c] 0.0016 2 Ey [c]	Ey	
$\frac{c = 4.003}{0.003 + 5y} d_{max} =$ $\frac{c_{s_1} = 0.003}{c} (c - d_1)$ $f_{s_1} = f_{s_1} \cdot f_{s_2} = 0.003 (c - d_2) =$ $f_{s_2} = \frac{0.003}{c} (c - d_2) =$ $f_{s_3} = f_{s_3} \cdot f_{s_3} = 46.4 \text{ ksi}$ $f_{s_3} = 20.2 \text{ ksi} [c]$ $f_{s_4} = -4.6 \text{ ksi} [T]$	$\frac{0.007}{0.007 \pm 0.00107} (32) = 19.52^{\circ}$ $\frac{0.007}{19.52} \pm 0.00107 = 20.0015 = 2$	£y	

	Frame Spot checks Tech report 3		pase 2 of y	
-	$\begin{aligned} \varepsilon_{s_{S}} &= \frac{o, ooj}{c} C c = d_{S} z = -o, so \text{ is } c \varepsilon_{\gamma} \\ \varepsilon_{s_{S}} &= \varepsilon_{s_{S}} E = -\pi s, \forall k \in [C \\ \tau \\ \end{array} \end{aligned}$			
	E ₅₆ = -0.00207 = Ey E ₅₆ = -60 Ksi [T]			
	$P_b = 0.85 F'_c \cdot b \cdot \beta_i \cdot c + \leq Ac_i fr_i$	₿.=	0.85 - 0.05 (8000 - 4000) = 0.65	
	= 0,85(8)(24)(0.65)(19.53)+ 4(1.56)(72.5) + 2	C 1. 16) (4	6.4) + 2 (1.56)(20.2) + 2 (1.56)(-6.6)	
	+ 20	1.28)(-3)	(1) + *(1.20)(-60)	
	- 22 33 2			
	$M_{b} = 0.85 f'_{c} \cdot b \cdot \beta_{i} \cdot c \left(\frac{h}{2} - \frac{\beta_{i} \cdot c}{2}\right) + \mathcal{E}\left(A_{5i} \cdot f_{i}\right) \left(\frac{h}{2}\right)$	- di))		
2	= 0.85 (8) (24) (0.65) (14.57) (11.65) + 6786 + 130 = 37,030 k-in= 3,252.5 kft	34 189 4	61, P + 73P + 5616	
-	- pure tension			
-	6=00 ; Es = -Ey			
-74	$T_{R} = \mathcal{E} A_{S_{1}} f_{S_{1}}$			
	= 1.56 C16) C-60 K51 J= - 19 97.6 K			
			and proved from the last	
	$- \xi_{\xi} = \xi_{\xi} = 0.005$			
	C = 0.003 (33) = 12,35" 0.003+0.005			
	$\mathcal{E}_{S_1} \ge \frac{0.003}{12.35} \left(\frac{12.35}{12.35} - \frac{1}{6} \right) = 0.00223 > \mathcal{E}_{y}$; f	$\hat{s}_i = \hat{\epsilon}_{s_i} \cdot i$	Fs = 65, P Fs; [C]	
	Esz 2 0.000 814 CEy ; Esz 23.6 24 [CC]	P ₀ = a.	15 (8) (24) (0.65) (12.78) + 6.24 (65.8)	
	Esz = -0.000635 e Ey ; Esz = -18.4 KG ET]	1	+ 3,12 (23,6) + 3,12 (-18,4) + 2,12 (-60,6)	4
	Esy = -0.00 209 3 Ey ; fry = - 60.6 Kr [7]	= 32	+ 2,12 (-102,7) + 6,24 (-141) 5. F K	
4	Ess = -0.00359 3 Ey ; Ess = -102.7 Esi (7)	Mn= 0.1	PS (F)(24) (0.45)(12,38) (14) + 615+ 46	2,7
	-se = - 4.00 s > ry ; +re = -14s ++i [1]	= 42	172,2+567,2+2883,8+13572 , OSP K-10=3505 K-Ft	

	Frence Spat checks	Tech report 3	pase 3 of 4
	- Pure bending , Mo		
0	- assume Es, and Es, do - assume Es, = Es, yield	mat the ld	
	fs1 = 0.003 C C - 3) C2701	00)	
	fsz z 0.003 (c-1)(2110	0)	
	$f_{53} = f_{54} = f_{55} = f_{55} = -6$	0	
	EFt 0.85 (P) (24) (0.61)	$c + 4C(1,s_1) \begin{bmatrix} s_2 - 2s_1 \\ C \end{bmatrix} + z$	$(1.56)\left[\frac{p_2-1p_3}{c}\right] + 2CLS((-35))$
		+ 2 (1.56) (-71	e) + 2(Lse)(-75) + 4(Lse)(-75)
	= 166.12 + 542.5 - 16	$\frac{28.6}{C}$ + 271.4 - 2443 - 1170	
	= 1+6,1 C + 542,4 C -	1628,6 + 271,4 C = 2443 = 117	00(20
	106,1 C = 355,7 C = 40	11.620	
	c = 8,1 "		
	venty assumptions; fst = s	14, P ks; < fy = 60 ks; ok	
	f ₅₁ = -	9.7 Ksi 7 fy = - 60 (does not	yield) ok
	f ₅₃ = -	74 Ksi 2 fy =-60 (yis lds)	°K
	fey = -	139 ksi & fy = -bo Cyleidz)	e k
	fs52 =	203 ksi & Fyz-60 Cyleids)	*K
	- fsb = -1	267. Kai & Fyz-60 Cyleids)	ok
			$h_{12} = \delta_{A}$
	Mo = 0.85 (8)(24) (0.65)) (#,1) (15, 35) + 4 (1.56) (\$4, 8)(15) + 2 (1,26) (- 7,7) (7) + 2 (1,56) (-17) (3)
	44 742 K-10 - 4 110 1	+ 2(1.56)(-139)(-2)	+ 2 (1.56) (-203) (-7) + 4 (1.56) (-267) (-15)
	E 11, see and E 1, http		
4			
			and the second se

	Frame Spot checks Tech report 3 page 4 of 4	
0	For field columns: $\phi = a.ss + a.zs \left(\frac{\varepsilon_{\pm} - \varepsilon_{y}}{a.ao_{5} - \varepsilon_{y}} \right)$	
	- axial strength, P.	
	$C = a^{\alpha}$, $F_C = F_S = 0.003$	
	$\int f(R(e - 0, 002 < E_{S} < 0, 002) \phi = 0, 05 + 0.25 \left(\frac{0.003 - 0.00207}{0.003 - 0.00207} \right) = 0, 73$	
	ØPA = 0,7367203)= \$258 k	
	- balanced Stransth, Mb, Pb	
	C = 0.003 0.003 + ty dimax = 17,53"	
	$\varepsilon_{56} = \varepsilon_{E} = -0.00207 = \varepsilon_{ij}$ $\phi = 0.65 + 0.25 \left(\frac{0.00207 - 0.00207}{0.00207} \right) = 0.05$	
	\$PA = 0.45 (2232) = 1451 K	
	\$ Mn = 0.65[3252,5]= 2114 Kft	
	- Pure tension,	
	C= 00, Es= Ey==0.06207, \$= 0.65	
	\$P_0 = 0.65(-1417,6) = - 973 K	
	- Mn and Pn e Et = 0.005	
	Since $\xi_{\xi} \ge 0.005$, $\phi = 0.90$	
	\$Pn = 4.9 (325, 8) = 293 K	
	Ø Mn = 0.1 (2505) = 3155 K (+	
	- pure kunding, Me	
1	$\xi_{\xi} = \xi_{\xi} = \frac{0.003}{F_{ij}} (\xi_{ij} - 33) = -0.0052 > 0.005 ; \phi = 0.30$	

ΦPn (kips)	ΦMn (k-ft)
-973	0
0	3703
293	3155
1451	2114
5258	0
Pu (kips)	Mu (k-ft)
2362	176



Appendix G: Typical Floor Plans



Typical underground parking plan rotated 90 degrees CW





Typical Floor plan oriented 90 degrees CW



Building Section